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Geomerics

Computer games middleware / graphics – 33%
Geomerics has successfully developed and launched its ‘Enlighten’ product,
dramatically improving the lighting of computer games and enhancing the
user experience.
Sales have been secured from key reference customers including
Electronic Arts, CCP and FunCom. Underlying Geomerics’ products
is a unique lighting technology platform, which has a range of potential
applications in further markets including CGI (computer generated imagery)
and Architectural Visualisation. The first games incorporating Geomerics’
technology including Battlefield3, Need for Speed and Eve Online are
expected to be released later this year.
Geomerics has established a corporate partnership with one of the world’s
leading technology companies. The partnership comprises both a cash
investment and an ongoing partnership arrangement. Of the three milestones
agreed for the partnership, Geomerics have already successfully
completed two.
The partnership arrangement places Geomerics in a significantly stronger
position to further develop and capitalise on its Enlighten product and
underlying technology platform.
Geomerics announced strong sales at the start of the calendar year with
sales for seven new titles with three major publishers in the first quarter.
Further strengthening its sales capability, Geomerics has established an
agreement with Epic Games Inc that its Enlighten lighting solution will be
integrated with Epic’s award winning computer games development
platform Unreal Engine 3.
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Our Strategy
ANGLE has founded and developed a portfolio of companies in which it retains
substantial equity stakes. These companies were selected for their strong IP
platform addressing a large international market providing the potential for
exceptional investment returns for ANGLE shareholders.
The average age of the portfolio companies is seven years old and they have
been developed to the stage where, with the exception of Parsortix, the portfolio is
substantially cash-independent of ANGLE, thereby presenting ANGLE shareholders
with the potential for substantial upside returns without a corresponding downside
risk of further investment.
ANGLE has deployed a deliberate strategy to focus its efforts and resources on
the winners within the portfolio recognising that, with early stage technology
investment, successful returns are likely to be concentrated in a relatively small
number of investments, which may be big winners.
ANGLE’s investment portfolio comprises:
• Acolyte Biomedica: deferred consideration of up to £4.7 million due in respect of the sale
of the investment. Depending on outcome of the court case between the former major
Acolyte shareholder and the purchaser, potential for ANGLE to pursue its own claim
against the purchaser
• Geomerics (33%) (computer games middleware and computer graphics): dynamic
lighting solution for computer games optimised to run on Playstation®3, Xbox 360™ and
PC. Enlighten is behind some of the industry's biggest titles, including Battlefield 3, Need for
Speed, and Eve Online. Potential for a trade sale in the future
• NeuroTargets (65%) (neuropathic pain, Alzheimer’s and multiple sclerosis): development
work being undertaken by the University of Bristol based on galanin, a peptide involved in
repair of the nervous system. Long term potential that requires partnering
• Novocellus (82%) (IVF embryo viability): scientifically based test of the health of an IVF
embryo, being developed by corporate partner Origio, a leading supplier of IVF culture
medium. Potential for milestone payments and royalty income in the future
• Parsortix (80%) (cancer and foetal diagnostics): separation of rare cells from blood.
Potential for a major opportunity to develop a patent protected cancer diagnostic
device providing a major step forward in cancer treatment
Our work with Parsortix has identified a major new opportunity. The remainder of the
portfolio has been structured so that returns can be achieved without significant financial
input from ANGLE. Consequently, the recent fundraising, which has further strengthened the
balance sheet, can be applied principally in support of Parsortix and this will be a major
focus of our efforts.
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Novocellus

IVF embryo viability – 82%
Novocellus has developed a patent protected system, EmbryoSure®,
for selecting the embryos in IVF treatment most likely to lead to a successful
pregnancy. The system has been tested on a total of more than 1,200 human
embryos in research studies and two retrospective pilot clinical studies.
It is expected that EmbryoSure® will lead to a 25% uplift in the clinical
pregnancy rate for IVF encouraging the adoption of single embryo transfer
with consequent reduction in health risks associated with multiple births.
Novocellus has agreed a partnership with Origio, a leading supplier of IVF
culture medium, whereby Origio are responsible for managing and funding
the final trials for EmbryoSure®. Origio then have the right to license the
EmbryoSure® IP in exchange for milestone payments of up to £4.5 million and
a 25% royalty on future sales. Origio is currently completing final stability tests
of the EmbryoSure® culture medium and preparing the training of IVF clinic
staff prior to starting the enrolment of patients in the trial.
The first part of the study, which is expected to be completed by Q1 2012,
is intended to enable the product definition to be finalised and to confirm the
pregnancy uplift that may be achieved. Following completion of the first part
of the study, the product development will be completed and the second
part of the study process finalised. This will involve a trial utilising the final
EmbryoSure® product to select embryos for transfer and comparing this
against existing clinical success rates. Assuming successful completion of
the second part of the study, the EmbryoSure® product will then meet all the
requirements for both the EU and US markets and will be backed up by strong
clinical data to support the rapid growth in sales of EmbryoSure® worldwide.
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Parsortix
Major new focus: cancer diagnostics

Cancer diagnostics / foetal diagnostics – 80%
Parsortix has developed an innovative cell separation platform technology for
the isolation of cells in blood, including cells which occur in very low numbers.
This technology was previously proven in the separation of intact foetal cells
from peripheral maternal blood, where there is at most one foetal cell for
500 million maternal cells. This application is being developed by Parsortix to
provide a non-invasive foetal diagnostic tool to replace invasive procedures
such as amniocentesis and chorionic villi sampling.
Initial experiments have been successful in capturing cultured breast cancer
cells that had been added to healthy whole blood. This “spiked blood”
experiment is a pre-cursor to isolating cancer cells in cancer patient blood.
The device is believed to have captured the added cancer cells and allowed
them to be visually counted through the microscope.

The Parsortix separation device captures cells based on their physical
characteristics. We believe Parsortix’s technology, which is the subject of a
granted US patent and is patent pending in other major economic territories,
is both cheaper and more effective than identified competitor products,
which utilise antibody affinity capture.
A simple cancer cell counting device has the ability to support cancer
diagnosis, treatment and remission monitoring. The cancer diagnostic
opportunity is considered to be of great commercial potential because the
level of further technological development, investment requirements and
timescales are all comparatively very low to secure a patent protected
position addressing a very large market.

Innovative separation platform
Image shows magnified detail from a separation cassette.
The experiment successfuly captures cultured breast cancer cells added
to healthy whole blood on the sloped separation element of the cassette.
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Chairman’s Statement
With the fundraising complete and with a strengthened balance
sheet, ANGLE has a more secure position to realise value from its
portfolio companies.
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Introduction
ANGLE’s investment business has strengthened during the year.
Through our partnership strategy, key investments have been able to
make progress without significant funding from ANGLE and this has
enabled us to apply additional focus to our medical diagnostic
subsidiary, Parsortix. If the initial positive developments are confirmed,
we believe that this will provide a value generating opportunity
for ANGLE.
Results
A modest profit before controlled investments and tax for continuing
operations was achieved of £0.1 million (2010: £0.3 million) after a fair
value gain of £0.2 million (2010: £0.6 million). After controlled investments,
this translated into a loss before tax for continuing operations of
£0.3 million (2010: profit £0.1 million).
The major focus of activity was on Parsortix. Operating costs to manage
and develop the Ventures portfolio were reduced to £0.4 million
(2010: £0.5 million) while planned expenditure on controlled investments
was maintained at £0.3 million (2010: £0.3 million). Expenditure principally
related to Parsortix reflecting the financial independence of other
investments and increased focus on medical diagnostics during the year.
Modest additional investment led to an increase in the fair value of the
investment portfolio to £3.9 million (30 April 2010 £3.7 million). Under IFRS,
no investments were revalued during the year despite progress against
key milestones. The fair value of the investment portfolio does not include
the value of controlled investments (NeuroTargets, Novocellus, Parsortix),
which the Directors believe may represent the largest part of ANGLE’s
value in the future.
During the year, the cash balance at 30 April 2011 increased to
£0.6 million (30 April 2010: normalised £0.5 million).
Share issues
A fundraising completed during the year raised £0.76 million.
Subsequent to the year-end, shareholders and new investors have
agreed a further fundraising of £1.25 million, conditional only on HMRC
Advance Assurance and AIM listing of shares issued. Funds raised will be
used principally to progress the Parsortix cancer diagnostics product.
Management services
The Management services business delivered a profit before tax during
the year of £0.3 million (2010: £0.2 million).
Whilst the Management services business remained profitable,
it continues to face challenges with pressure on UK Government
contracts and uncertainties in the Middle East.
Portfolio companies
ANGLE has deployed its partnership strategy during the year to give its
portfolio companies the potential to develop strongly without reliance
on ANGLE for ongoing financial support. The Chief Executive’s Statement
highlights key progress achieved during the year. The portfolio now offers
the potential for substantial cash returns for ANGLE through trade sale,
licence revenue and other income but with ANGLE’s ongoing
investment commitment being minimal.
ANGLE’s investment and management activity during the year has in
large part been focused on Parsortix. We are delighted that this work has
now identified a substantial business opportunity for ANGLE in cancer
diagnostics.
If the initial findings are validated, the Directors believe that ANGLE will
have a major opportunity to develop a patent protected cancer
diagnostic device for the capture of circulating tumour cells in cancer
patients, which will address a key medical requirement.

Outlook
With the fundraising complete and with a strengthened balance sheet,
ANGLE has a more secure position to realise value from its portfolio
companies. Geomerics, Novocellus and Acolyte Biomedica have been
structured so that returns may be achieved with minimal further
investment from ANGLE. NeuroTargets may offer further potential but its
situation is longer term and uncertain at present.
This leaves ANGLE in the position of being able to focus resources on the
development of Parsortix, whilst knowing that shareholders have other
potential streams of income.
The Parsortix opportunity, if validated, is exceptional not only because of
the size of the market but also because the level of further technological
development, investment requirements and timescales are all much
smaller than would normally be required for a patent-protected medical
diagnostic opportunity. This would be a highly attractive proposition for
shareholders and potential corporate partners.
Finally I would like to thank ANGLE’s team, our partners and shareholders
for their continued support and look forward to updating the market on
our progress in due course.

Garth Selvey
Chairman
27 July 2011
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Chief Executive’s Statement
We are delighted that Parsortix and the opportunities surrounding
it have captured the imagination of investors and we look forward
to progressing the technology to the next stage.

ANGLE plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011 Page 07

Introduction
During the year, ANGLE maintained performance in its Management
services business having discontinued its US operations, progressed its
portfolio companies through key milestones and developed a major
new opportunity in cancer diagnostics.
Management services
Revenues from the Management services business were maintained at
£2.4 million (2010: £2.4 million) generating profit before tax of £0.3 million
(2010: £0.2 million).
The Management services business has been constrained by UK
Government cut backs. At the same time, despite promising signs,
new opportunities in the Middle East have been seriously delayed as
a result of the political and economic uncertainties in the region.
Our established Management services contracts will continue to be
closely managed and are expected to remain profitable, although we
expect a drop in revenues as contracts complete and some of them do
not renew. Set against this, a number of new contracts are coming to
the market for tender.
Portfolio value
ANGLE’s portfolio of investments comprises Geomerics and Acolyte
Biomedica, which are shown on the statement of financial position at a
fair value of £3.9 million at 30 April 2011 (30 April 2010: £3.7 million) and
NeuroTargets, Novocellus and Parsortix, which as controlled investments
are consolidated and are excluded from the fair value of the investment
portfolio. NeuroTargets was consolidated during the year.
Parsortix – 80%
Cancer diagnostics/foetal diagnostics
Parsortix has developed an innovative cell separation platform
technology for the isolation of cells in blood, including cells which occur
in very low numbers.
This technology was previously proven in the separation of intact foetal
cells from peripheral maternal blood, where there is at most one foetal
cell for 500 million maternal cells. This application is being developed by
ANGLE to provide a non-invasive foetal diagnostic tool to replace
invasive procedures such as amniocentesis and chorionic villi sampling.
During the year, Parsortix engaged in extensive discussions with major
medical diagnostic companies. It became clear in discussions that there
was an exceptional market opportunity available if the Parsortix cell
separation device could be used to separate tumour cells from blood.
ANGLE therefore decided to focus resources on investigating whether
and how Parsortix’s separation device could be used to capture cancer
cells in blood.
Initial experiments have been successful in capturing cultured
breast cancer cells that had been added to healthy whole blood.
This “spiked blood” experiment is a pre-cursor to isolating cancer cells in
cancer patient blood. The device thusfar is believed to have captured
the added cancer cells and allowed them to be visually counted
through the microscope.
The Parsortix separation device captures cells based on their physical
characteristics. We believe Parsortix’s technology, which is the subject
of a granted US patent in the process of being issued and is patent
pending in other major economic territories, is both cheaper and more
effective than identified competitor products, which utilise antibody
affinity capture.
A simple cancer cell counting device has the ability to support cancer
diagnosis, treatment and remission monitoring. The cancer diagnostic
opportunity is considered to be of great commercial potential because
the level of further technological development, investment requirements
and timescales are all comparatively very low to secure a patent
protected position addressing a very large market.

Other portfolio companies
ANGLE’s other portfolio companies are substantially cash independent
of ANGLE and comprise the following.
Acolyte Biomedica
Medical diagnostics/MRSA detection
The deferred consideration of up to £4.7 million due in respect of the sale
of the investment in Acolyte Biomedica remains subject to dispute
between the former Acolyte shareholders and the purchaser. ANGLE is
awaiting the outcome of legal action currently in Court, which is being
undertaken by the major former Acolyte shareholder. Once the
outcome of this action is known, ANGLE expects to pursue its own claim
against the purchaser. At present ANGLE has no exposure to legal costs.
Geomerics – 33%
Computer games middleware and computer graphics
Geomerics agreed a corporate partnership during the year with one of
the world’s leading technology companies. The partnership comprises
both a cash investment and an ongoing partnership arrangement.
The deal includes investment of up to £2.3 million into Geomerics.
During the year, two of the three milestones were successfully
completed. Geomerics has also announced strong sales at the start
of the calendar year with sales for seven new titles with three major
publishers in the first quarter. Further strengthening its sales capability,
Geomerics announced an agreement with Epic Games Inc that its
Enlighten lighting solution would be integrated with Epic’s award winning
computer games development platform Unreal Engine 3. Geomerics has
the potential for a future trade sale.
NeuroTargets – 65%
Neuropathic pain, Alzheimer’s and multiple sclerosis
NeuroTargets agreed a licensing deal with the University of Bristol,
and the Wellcome Trust during the year with a funding award from the
Wellcome Trust to the University to progress the galanin programme.
However, as is often the case, side effects were found in the first set
of targets being investigated by the University and new targets are
currently being sought. The University’s Wellcome Trust funding
programme has been terminated whilst this process is underway and
the University will need to reapply for the funding if the programme is to
progress. In addition to the work on neuropathic pain, NeuroTargets has
through Professor Wynick’s research also had positive pre-clinical results
for the treatment of multiple sclerosis (MS) and Alzheimer’s disease (AD).
NeuroTargets has secured a granted patent in Australia for the use of
galanin to treat MS and AD and applications in other territories are
ongoing. NeuroTargets has long term potential that requires partnering.
Novocellus – 82%
IVF embryo viability
Novocellus has agreed a partnership with Origio, a leading supplier of
IVF culture medium, whereby Origio are responsible for managing and
funding the final trials for Novocellus’ embryo viability product,
EmbryoSure®. Origio then have the right to license the EmbryoSure®
IP in exchange for milestone payments and a 25% royalty on future sales.
Origio is currently completing final stability tests of the EmbryoSure®
culture medium and preparing the training of IVF clinic staff prior to
starting the enrolment of patients in the trial. ANGLE understands that
Origio’s progress with the trial of Novocellus’ embryo selection product is
delayed and therefore believes it prudent to revise the expected date
for the first trial results to the end of Q1 2012. Novocellus has the potential
for milestone payments and royalty income in the future.
*Percentage shareholdings based on issued share capital as at 30 April 2011.

Summary
ANGLE’s diversified business model provides shareholders with several
opportunities for substantial return without major investment from ANGLE
going forward.
In addition there is the potential for a major return from actively
investing in the development of Parsortix’s cell separation technology.
We are delighted that Parsortix and the opportunities surrounding it have
captured the imagination of investors and we look forward to
progressing the technology to the next stage.

Andrew Newland
Chief Executive
27 July 2011

Page 08 ANGLE plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011

Financial Review
Cash and costs are being carefully managed.

Financial highlights
• Management services revenues maintained at £2.4 million (2010: £2.4 million)
despite constrained public sector markets
• Fair value gain £0.2 million (2010: £0.6 million)
• Management services profit before tax £0.3 million (2010: £0.2 million)
• Profit before controlled investments and tax £0.1 million (2010: £0.3 million)
• Loss before tax from continuing operations £0.3 million (2010: profit £0.1 million)
• Operating costs to manage and develop the Ventures portfolio reduced to
£0.4 million (2010: £0.5 million)
• Planned expenditure on controlled investments maintained at £0.3 million
(2010: £0.3 million) reflecting ANGLE’s partnership approach and the stage of
development of the portfolio
• Fair value of investment portfolio £3.9 million (30 April 2010 £3.7 million).
This fair value includes the value of the Acolyte earn-out held in “other receivables”
but does not include the value of controlled investments
• Cash balance at 30 April 2011 increased to £0.6 million (30 April 2010: normalised
£0.5 million)
• Funds raised during the year of £0.76 million. Further fundraising of £1.25 million
announced on 15 July 2011
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Introduction
Strong progress was made with the portfolio companies during the year,
whilst the Management services business continued to face challenging
conditions due to public sector cuts and uncertainties in the Middle East.
The US Management services and Ventures business was discontinued
during the year and its results are shown separately from the continuing
operations.
The £0.76 million fund raising during the year and the £1.25 million fund
raising after the year end have strengthened the financial position of
the Group, and in particular will allow us to further develop our 80%
subsidiary Parsortix to validate the initial findings in relation to a potential
cancer diagnostic product.
Revenue (Note 2)
Management services revenues account for the majority of the Group’s
revenues. Revenue for the year was maintained at £2.4 million
(2010: £2.4 million).
As previously anticipated, the environment for renewals and new
contracts has proved challenging and remains constrained. Projects we
would have previously expected to see renewed or extended were not,
particularly reflecting the dissolution of the regional development
agencies which were a major part of our customer base. Although the
Group has undertaken significant Middle East business development,
the political and economic conditions have constrained the potential
to generate substantial new revenues in the region. There remain some
good pipeline opportunities in both the UK and the Middle East but
timing remains uncertain and the bidding environment is particularly
competitive.
The Group continues to supply services to the portfolio companies but
to the extent that these are controlled investments, applicable sales are
removed from revenue on consolidation.
Change in Fair Value (Note 4)
Overall there was a change in fair value gain of £0.2 million (2010: £0.6
million). The fair value gain arose as a result of the deemed acquisition of
NeuroTargets (2010: realised fair value gain from disposal of Provexis less
fair value loss from other investments). The Board continues to take a
cautious view of the valuation of non-controlled investments given the
continuing adverse economic conditions and funding environment.
There were no other changes to fair value for non-controlled investments.
Operating costs (Note 5)
Staff costs are the Group’s most significant individual cost item
accounting for some 66% of costs (2010: 58%).
Operating costs to manage and develop the Ventures portfolio were
reduced to £0.4 million (2010: £0.5 million) as the Group continued to
focus on its existing portfolio.
Under IFRS, results for controlled investments are consolidated into the
Group accounts and not shown at fair value in the statement of financial
position. Planned expenditure on controlled investments increased by
20% to £0.34 million (2010: £0.28 million). The overall cost is low reflecting
the progress and maturing nature of the portfolio and their decreased
requirement for support from ANGLE, although investment has been
increased in Parsortix given encouraging progress with its R&D.
The Group remains committed to maintaining as low and flexible a cost
base as possible. Costs have already been reduced so that the
company is operating in a cost effective manner and wherever possible
and appropriate we will seek to reduce costs further.

Investment portfolio (Note 13)
The year ended 30 April 2011 has seen encouraging progress in the
investment portfolio. Controlled investments are consolidated into the
results of the Group as described in Operating costs above.
The fair value of the portfolio, comprising non-controlled investments
and “other receivables”, was £3.9 million (2010: £3.7 million). Noncontrolled investments are held on the statement of financial position at
a fair value of £2.4 million (2010: £2.2 million). A fair value of £1.5 million
is held on the statement of financial position under “Other receivables”
(2010: £1.5 million) in relation to deferred consideration of up to £4.7
million due in respect of the sale of Acolyte Biomedica. This receivable
is under dispute. A Court case between the former major Acolyte
shareholder and the purchaser is in progress.
Intangible assets (Note 15)
Intellectual Property intangible assets of £400,000 were recognised at
fair value on the acquisition of NeuroTargets Limited, together with
goodwill of £98,380 which was immediately impaired. An impairment
charge of £80,000 has subsequently been made on the acquired
NeuroTargets IP reflecting the cessation of the University of Bristol’s
Wellcome Trust funding.
Non-current and current liabilities (Notes 20 and 21)
Non-current liabilities comprise convertible and other loan arrangements
for controlled investments and there is no recourse to ANGLE.
Current liabilities have reduced significantly to £0.5 million (2010: £1.1
million), mainly as a result of the completion of our management of
a grant voucher scheme on behalf of a client.
Cash
The Group ended the year with a cash balance of £0.6 million
(2010: £0.8 million, normalised to £0.5 million due to a £0.3 million
advance receipt).
The Group completed a fund raising during the year of £0.76 million
(2010: £nil). There were no cash realisations from the investment portfolio
in the year (2010: £1.4 million).
The maturing portfolio has become substantially cash independent
from ANGLE as a result of closing corporate deals, securing third party
funding (both investment and grants) and generating sales.
The tightening credit market may produce pressures on future funding
and portfolio companies are focusing on sales generation and
corporate deals, where appropriate, to ensure they remain in as strong
a position as possible.
The exception is Parsortix where, due to strong R&D progress, the Group
is planning significant further investment in the company.
Post reporting date events (Note 28)
A fundraising of £1.25 million was announced on 15 July 2011, the
proceeds of which will be used to strengthen the Company’s balance
sheet, help meet corporate overheads during the next 12 months and
allow the Company to progress Parsortix. In addition, Geomerics has
joined Epic Games’ prestigious Unreal Engine 3 Integrated Partners
Programme, further strengthening its sales channels.
The Group is carefully executing its business plan so that business
activities are in line with the available cash resources and cash will
continue to be carefully managed. The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future as detailed in Note 1.4.

Tax (Note 10)
The tax charge for the year was £nil (2010: credit £0.1 million).
Results
The Management services business generated a profit before tax for the
year of £0.3 million (2010: £0.2 million).
After expenditure on controlled investments, the Group made a loss
before tax from continuing operations of £0.3 million (2010: profit
£0.1 million) resulting in a basic and diluted loss per share of 0.90p
(2010: profit 0.76p).

Ian Griffiths
Finance Director
27 July 2011
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Board of Directors
Garth R Selvey Chairman
Garth Selvey has a BSc in Physics and Electronics
Engineering from the University of Manchester and
has spent thirty six years in the computer industry
with technical, product, sales and marketing roles.
He became Managing Director of TIS Applications Ltd
in 1984 and a main board director of TIS Ltd prior to
its acquisition by Misys in 1989. He organised the
management buyout of the social housing division of
Misys and became Group Chief Executive of Comino
Group plc when it floated on AIM in 1997. Comino
moved to a full listing in 1999 where he remained
until its successful public sale to Civica plc in February
2006. Garth joined ANGLE as a non-executive
Director in September 2006.
Andrew D W Newland Chief Executive
Andrew Newland founded ANGLE in 1994 and has
an MA in Engineering Science from the University of
Cambridge, and is a qualified Chartered Accountant.
After working with the engineering conglomerate,
TI plc, he worked for KPMG from 1982 to 1994; from
1985 to 1987 he was based in the US as a manager
providing corporate finance and business advice to
high technology firms in the area around Route 128,
Boston, Massachusetts. From 1987 to 1994 he worked
for KPMG in the UK with responsibility for establishing
KPMG’s UK and European High Technology Practices
and High Technology Consulting Group. Andrew has
founded and led eleven technology companies in
partnership with world class research organisations,
both in the UK and the US.
Ian F Griffiths Finance Director
Ian Griffiths has a BSc in Mathematics with
Management Applications from Brunel University
and is a qualified Chartered Accountant. For seven
years he worked for KPMG, initially in accountancy
(1986 to 1990), then in management consulting (1990
to 1993) within KPMG’s High Technology Practice and
High Technology Consulting Group where he
specialised in financial modelling, business planning,
corporate finance, market development and strategy
work. After a career break, Ian joined ANGLE in 1995.
As well as leading the finance function at ANGLE,
he has been closely involved with the development
and delivery of the UK, US and Middle East
Management services businesses and in developing
new Ventures and supporting Progeny® Companies.
David W Quysner CBE Non-executive Director
David Quysner has an MA from the University of
Cambridge. He began his career at ICFC
(now known as 3i) in 1969. In 1982, he joined
Abingworth, a venture capital fund management
company, and became its Managing Director in 1994
and its Chairman in 2001. David was Chairman of the
British Venture Capital Association in 1996/97. He is
currently the Chairman of RCM Technology Trust plc
and Capital for Enterprise Limited and a Director of
Foresight VCT2 plc, Medical Research Council
Technology and Private Equity Investor plc.
David joined ANGLE in 2004.

From left to right
Standing
Ian Griffiths
David Quysner
Seated
Andrew Newland
Garth Selvey
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Directors’ Report
For the year ended 30 April 2011
The Directors present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 April 2011 for ANGLE plc (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “ANGLE”). ANGLE plc, Company registration number 4985171, is a public listed company, incorporated and domiciled in
England and quoted on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM). The Annual Report includes two voluntarily prepared statements: the Corporate
Governance Report and the Remuneration Report.
The Directors who held office as at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a
Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.
Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company. ANGLE is an international ventures and management services business focusing
on the commercialisation of technology and the development of technology-based industry. ANGLE creates, develops and advises technology
businesses on its own behalf and for its clients.
Review of the business and future developments
The Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Statement and Financial Review on pages 4 to 9 report on the Group’s performance during the past
financial year and its prospects.
The information that fulfils the requirements of the Business Review can be found in the Chief Executive’s Statement and Financial Review on
pages 6 to 9. These are incorporated into this report by reference.
Results and dividends
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year is set out on pages 20 to 21.
The Group made a loss for the year of £432,408 (2010: loss £44,755) from continuing and discontinued operations.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year (2010: £nil). The Board periodically reviews the Company’s dividend policy
in the context of its financial condition and in the light of any realisations on disposal of equity stakes.
Research and development
Expenditure on research and development incurred by controlled investments that have been consolidated into the Group results as subsidiaries
under the acquisition method of accounting amounted to £11,861 in the year (2010: £25,252). All other investments have continued to undertake
substantial research and development activities during the year.
Property, plant and equipment
The changes in property, plant and equipment during the year are explained in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.
Directors and their interests
The following Directors have held office since 1 May 2010:
I F Griffiths
A D W Newland
D W Quysner
G R Selvey
The Directors’ interests, including beneficial interests, in the ordinary shares and share options of the Company are shown in the Remuneration Report
on pages 17 to 18.
Significant shareholdings
In addition to the Directors’ interests shown on pages 17 to 18, the following shareholders had interests in 3% or more of the Company’s ordinary
share capital at 19 July 2011:

Name
Paul Vial (directly & indirectly)
Aidan Waine Esq
AXA Investment Managers UK Ltd
WorldSpreads Limited

Number of shares

Holding
%

1,619,000
1,303,207
1,125,433
1,110,000

5.32
4.28
3.70
3.65

Risk management
Details of the Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in Note 17 to these Financial Statements, along with further
information on the Group’s use of financial instruments.
Principal risks and uncertainties
The Directors consider that the Group is exposed to a number of risks and uncertainties:
• the Group has a relatively modest level of cash and could therefore be vulnerable to late payments by customers;
• the failure to secure sufficient new management services contracts or a public sector squeeze on existing contracts such that the operating costs
of the business are not covered;
• the nature of the activities of the investments means there is considerable technical and market risk, particularly with regard to biotech, which
may result in delays, increased costs or ultimately failure of one or more of the investments, which could significantly affect the overall value of
the Group;
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• the early stage investment market remains challenging and there may be delays in securing investment and/or corporate partnerships together
with pressures on prices in portfolio companies; portfolio companies may require further support from the Group;
• the exit environment remains challenging and there may be pressures on prices and/or delays in securing cash exits;
• in the event that new funds are required there can be no guarantee that these will be available; and
• the loss of key personnel.
Supplier payment policy
It is Group policy to communicate clearly and agree the terms of payment at the start of business with suppliers and to pay in accordance with the
agreed terms of the contract and other legal obligations. ANGLE agrees terms for certain projects such that its supplier will be paid once ANGLE has
been paid. Where no contract terms are specified, then assuming suppliers have met their obligations, the policy is to pay within 30 days of receipt
of a correct invoice. The Group had 15 days’ purchases outstanding for payment at 30 April 2011 (2010: 56 days), based on the average daily
amount invoiced by suppliers during the year. The Company had no trade payables at 30 April 2011 (2010: £nil).
Charitable and political donations
The Group made no charitable donations during the year (2010: £nil). The Group made no political donations during the year (2010: £nil).
Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company Financial Statements for each financial year. The Directors are required by the
AIM Rules of the London Stock Exchange to prepare Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union (“EU”) and have elected under company law to prepare the Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law).
The Group Financial Statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and performance of the
Group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in relation to such financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to financial
statements giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair presentation.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period.
In preparing each of the Group and Company Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:
•
•
•
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
for the group financial statements state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the EU;
for the Company financial statements state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Company financial statements; and
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the company will continue
in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that
the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the ANGLE plc website. The
Group’s website is based on meeting the legal requirements for the UK and not to meet the different legal requirements relating to the preparation
and dissemination of financial information in other countries.
Going concern
The Directors have reviewed the projections for the 12 month period from the date of signing of these Financial Statements and based on the level
of existing cash, projected income and expenditure and other sources of funding, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
and Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly the going concern basis has been used in
preparing the Financial Statements. Note 1.4 provides additional information.
Auditor
The auditor Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP, Chartered Accountants, has indicated its willingness to continue in office.
Post reporting date events
Events after the reporting date relate to progress made by portfolio companies Geomerics and Parsortix, and to a fundraising by the Group and
have been described elsewhere and in Note 28.
Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 2:00 pm on 6 October 2011 at ANGLE’s offices, 3 Frederick Sanger Road, The Surrey
Research Park, Guildford, GU2 7YD. The notice of meeting is enclosed within this report on pages 55 to 59.
By order of the Board

A D W Newland
27 July 2011
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Corporate Governance Report
Compliance with the Combined Code
The Company’s shares were admitted to trading on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) of the London Stock Exchange on 17 March 2004.
AIM listed companies are not required to comply with the disclosures of the Combined Code (2008) of Corporate Governance. However, the Board
supports the principles contained in the Combined Code and is committed to maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. In respect of
the year ended 30 April 2011 the Board has sought to comply with the provisions of the Combined Code in so far as it considers them to be
appropriate to a company of this size, nature and structure, and has explained any areas of non-compliance with those provisions.
Below is a brief description of the Board, its role and its committees followed by details of the Group’s systems of internal control.
Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the proper management of the Group. Its aim is to provide leadership and control in order to
ensure the growth and development of a successful business, while representing the interests of the Company’s shareholders.
The Board currently comprises the Chairman, one Non-executive and two Executive Directors and is responsible to shareholders for the governance
of ANGLE plc and for the effective operation and management of the Group. Different Directors hold the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
and there is a clear division of responsibilities between them. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the running of the Board, ensuring that no
individual or group dominates the Board’s decision making and ensuring that the Non-executive Director is properly briefed on matters. The Chief
Executive has responsibility for implementing the strategy of the Board and managing the day-to-day business activities of the Group through his
management of the Executive Directors and senior managers. Individual Directors possess a wide variety of skills and experience and biographical
details of the Directors are set out on page 10.
The Non-executive Director is considered by the Board to be independent of management and free of any relationship which could materially
interfere with the exercise of his independent judgement. The Board considers that the Non-executive Director is of sufficient calibre to bring the
strength of independence to the Board. The Board has not nominated a Senior Independent Director, as recommended in the Combined Code,
as there is currently only one Non-executive director and in any case it believes issues can be raised through the normal channels of the Chairman,
Chief Executive and Finance Director and where necessary the Non-executive Director can be approached directly.
Management supply the Board with appropriate and timely information. All Directors are able to take training and/or independent professional
advice in the furtherance of their duties if necessary. All Directors also have access, at the Company’s expense, to experienced legal advice
through the Company’s legal advisors and other independent professional advisors as required.
The Board has at least eight meetings per year with additional special meetings as required. As well as regularly reviewing trading performance
and significant risks, the Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision, including the review and approval of:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Group policy and long term plans and strategy for the profitable development of the business;
interim and annual Financial Statements;
major investments and divestments;
other significant financing matters such as acquisitions and capital item purchases;
annual budgets and amendments; and
senior executive remuneration and appointments.

In addition certain other responsibilities have been delegated to the Committees of the Board, each of which has clearly defined terms of reference
(available from the Company Secretary).
Board effectiveness and evaluation
The Company supports the concept of an effective Board leading and controlling the Company. The Board therefore undertakes a periodic
evaluation of its performance, its Directors and its Committees, the most recent of which was undertaken in July 2011. The review, led by the
Chairman, involves each Board member providing feedback and comments on the others with specific actions identified to improve certain areas.
Service contracts and letters of appointment
The two Executive Directors Andrew Newland and Ian Griffiths have service contracts with the Company dated 9 March 2004 and effective from
17 March 2004. The contracts are not set for a specific term, but include a rolling 12-month notice period by the Company or the individual.
The Chairman Garth Selvey has a letter of appointment dated and effective from 7 September 2006. The Non-executive Director David Quysner has
a letter of appointment dated 9 March 2004 and effective from 17 March 2004. These letters are issued in place of service contracts. These
appointments are not set for a specific term and are terminable at will without notice by either party.
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Election
Under the Company’s Articles of Association, newly appointed Directors are required to resign and seek re-election at the first Annual General
Meeting following their appointment, and all Directors are required to seek re-election at intervals of no more than three years. All Directors were
re-elected by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 29 September 2010. Accordingly no Directors are seeking re-election this year.
Committees of the Board
The Board maintains Nominations, Audit and Remuneration Committees. All committees operate with written terms of reference. Their minutes are
circulated for review and consideration by the full Board of Directors, supplemented by oral reports on matters of particular significance from the
Committee Chairmen at Board Meetings.
The Combined Code recommends there are two Non-executive Directors on the Audit and Remuneration committees. In September 2007 the
Non-executive Director Garth Selvey was appointed as Chairman and has remained on the Audit and Remuneration Committees as the Board
believed it was inappropriate to only have one Member on the Audit and Remuneration Committees. Although this is non-compliant with the
Combined Code, as the Chairman is not considered independent under the provisions of the Code, the Board believed it offered an appropriate
solution in both avoiding only having one Member of the Committees and in reflecting the requirements of the Company.
The following committees assist the full Board in the exercise of its responsibilities by dealing with specific aspects of the Group’s affairs:
Audit Committee
The members of the Committee are the Non-executive Director David Quysner (Chairman of the Audit Committee) and Chairman Garth Selvey,
and it meets at least twice a year to review the interim and annual accounts before they are submitted to the Board. The external auditors, Finance
Director and Chief Executive may attend by invitation. Provision is made to meet with the auditors at least once a year without any Executive
Director present.
The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and considers financial reporting, corporate governance and internal controls. Its review of
financial reporting includes discussion of major accounting issues, policies and compliance with generally accepted accounting standards, review
of key management judgements and estimates, review of our risk assessment and risk management activities and going concern assumptions. It
also reviews the scope and results of the external audit and the independence and objectivity of the auditors and makes recommendations to the
Board on issues surrounding their remuneration, appointment, resignation or removal. The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring the
provision of non-audit services provided by the Group’s auditors and assesses the likely impact on the auditor’s independence and objectivity
before awarding them any material contract for additional services.
Remuneration Committee
The members of the Committee are the Chairman Garth Selvey (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and the Non-executive Director
David Quysner, and it meets at least twice a year. Neither member has any personal financial interest in the matters to be decided (other than
as shareholders), potential conflicts of interest arising from cross-directorships nor any day-to-day involvement in running the business. The Chief
Executive and Finance Director may attend by invitation but are not present when matters affecting their own remuneration arrangements
are considered.
The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and the Committee reviews and sets the remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment of the Executive Directors and senior management. It also agrees a policy for the salaries of all staff and has been responsible for
the development of the Company’s remuneration scheme. The decisions of the Committee are formally ratified by the Board.
Details of Directors’ remuneration and service contracts together with Directors’ interests are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 17 to 18.
Nominations Committee
The members of the Committee are the Chairman Garth Selvey (Chairman of the Nominations Committee) and the Non-executive Director
David Quysner, and it meets as required. The Chief Executive and Finance Director may attend by invitation.
The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference and is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and for
recommending to the Board suitable candidates for both executive and non-executive Board appointments.
Directors’ attendance
Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year ended 30 April 2011 is set out below.

Board
Audit
Remuneration
Nominations

Garth
Selvey

David
Quysner

Andrew
Newland

Ian
Griffiths

12/12
2/2
3/3
0/0

12/12
2/2
3/3
0/0

12/12
N/A
N/A
N/A

12/12
N/A
N/A
N/A

Scoring represents individual Directors’ attendance for those meetings when they were members of the Board or Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report
Continued
Internal controls
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system of internal control is designed to manage the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, rather than to eliminate it.
An internal audit function is not considered necessary or practical due to the size of the Group and the close day to day control exercised by the
Executive Directors and senior management. The Board will continue to monitor the requirement to have an internal audit function.
The key procedures that the Directors have established with a view to providing an effective system of internal control are as follows:
Management structure
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group and focuses on the overall Group strategy and the interests of shareholders. There is a schedule
of matters specifically reserved for decision by the Board. The Board has an organisational structure with clearly-defined responsibilities and lines
of accountability and each Executive Director has been given responsibility for specific aspects of the Group’s affairs.
Quality and integrity of personnel
The integrity and competence of personnel are ensured through high recruitment standards and subsequent training courses. High quality personnel
are seen as an essential part of the control environment.
Identification of business risks
The Board is responsible for identifying the major business risks faced by the Group and for determining the appropriate course of action to manage
those risks. The Audit Committee also considers and determines relevant action in respect of any control issues raised by the auditors.
Budgets and reporting
Each year the Board approves the annual budget which includes an assessment of key risk areas. Performance is monitored and relevant action
taken throughout the year through regular reporting to the Board of variances from the budget and preparation of updated forecasts for the year
together with information on the key risk areas. Underpinning these budgets is a system of internal financial control, based on authorisation
procedures and tiers of authority.
Investment and divestment appraisal
All material investment and divestment decisions require appraisal, review and Board approval.
The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal controls and has a process for the continuous identification, evaluation and
management of the significant risks the Group faces. Assessment considers the external environment, the industry in which the Group operates, the
internal environment and non-financial risks such as operational and legal risks. The risks identified are ranked based on significance and likelihood of
occurrence. The Board reviews the controls in place to mitigate those risks and improvements are made where required. A number of improvements
have been made in the year and others have been identified and are being progressed. Day-to-day responsibility for effective internal control and
risk monitoring rests with senior management.
Shareholder relations
The Company seeks to maintain and enhance good relations with its shareholders and analysts. The Company’s and Group’s Interim and Annual
Reports are supplemented by regular published updates to investors on commercial progress. All investors have access to up-to-date information
on the Group via its website, www.ANGLEplc.com, which also provides contact details for investor relations queries, details on the Company’s share
price, share price graphs and share trading activity. The Company also distributes Group announcements electronically. Shareholders and other
interested parties wishing to receive announcements via email are invited to sign up to the “Email alerts” facility on the Company’s website.
The Directors seek to build on a mutual understanding of objectives between the Company and its shareholders, especially considering the specialist
and medium term nature of the business. Institutional shareholders, private client brokers and analysts are in contact with the Directors through a regular
programme of briefing presentations and meetings to discuss issues and give feedback, primarily following the announcement of the interim and
preliminary results, but throughout the year as required. The Board also receives formal feedback through the Company’s stockbroker.
All shareholders are invited to make use of the Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) to raise any questions regarding the strategy,
management and operations of the Group. The Chairmen of the Nominations, Audit and Remuneration Committees are available to answer
any questions from shareholders at the AGM.
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Remuneration Report
The Company is not required by either the AIM Listing Rules or the Companies Act to produce a remuneration report, but has provided the
information below because of its commitment to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company’s remuneration policy
is the responsibility of the Remuneration Committee.
Remuneration policy
The Company’s policy on remuneration is to attract, retain and incentivise the Directors and staff in a manner consistent with the goals of good
corporate governance. In setting the Company’s remuneration policy, the Remuneration Committee considers a number of factors including the
basic salary, incentives and benefits available to Executive Directors, senior managers and staff of comparable companies. Consistent with this
policy the Company’s remuneration packages awarded to Executive Directors and senior management are intended to be competitive, comprise
a significant proportion of performance related remuneration and align employees with shareholders’ interests.
Basic salary and benefits
Salary levels are reviewed annually. The Committee believes that basic pay should be competitive in the relevant employment market and reflect
individual responsibilities and performance. Medical health insurance and life cover benefits are also provided to employees.
Trading Performance Annual Bonus Plan
The Company has a Trading Performance Annual Bonus Plan. This Plan seeks to focus efforts on increasing profitability by allocating a proportion of
the increase in Profits After Tax from Trading Performance compared to the prior year to a bonus pool for the Executive Directors and staff.
The former Deferred Annual Bonus Plan is being wound down and now refers only to the residual rights of a small number of employees and former
employees.
Proceeds of Realised Investments Bonus Plan
The Company has a Proceeds of Realised Investments Bonus Plan. This plan seeks to focus efforts on the achievement of investment realisations by
allocating 10% of all cash realisations to a bonus pool for the Executive Directors and staff.
It is the intention that for each £1 paid out as a bonus under this plan (payment of which will be subject to the cash needs of the business at that
time), an amount of £5 will be paid to shareholders as a distribution. Distributions will be subject to the availability of distributable reserves and when
appropriate the Company will seek the necessary approvals to allow this.
The former Venture Incentive Plan is being wound down and now refers only to the residual rights of a small number of employees and former
employees and specifically excludes the Executive Directors.
Share options
The Company has established an Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) Share Option Scheme and will operate this in conjunction with the existing
Approved and Unapproved share option schemes.
Discretionary incentives
The Group may operate with discretionary incentives either in addition to or instead of the incentives described above in any particular year,
dependent on the needs of the business.
Non-pensionable
None of the awards under the Trading Performance Annual Bonus Plan, Proceeds of Realised Investments Bonus plan, Share Option arrangements
or discretionary incentives are pensionable.
Non-executive Directors
Non-executive Directors receive a fixed fee for their services and the reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending meetings. The
remuneration of the Non-executive Directors, which is determined by the Board as a whole within the overall limits stipulated in the Articles of
Association, was unchanged during the year. Non-executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the Company’s incentive schemes.
Directors’ interests – shares
The Directors’ interests, including beneficial interests, in the ordinary shares of the Company were as stated below:
Ordinary shares of 10p each
I F Griffiths
A D W Newland
D W Quysner
G R Selvey

30 April 2011

1 May 2010

529,546
7,054,686
20,000
20,000

529,546
7,054,686
20,000
20,000
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Remuneration Report
Continued
Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate remuneration received by Directors who served during the year was as follows:
Year ended 30 April

2011
Salary/Fees(1)
£’000

Chairman
G R Selvey
Executive
I F Griffiths(4)
A D W Newland(2)(4)
Non-executive
D W Quysner
Total
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

2011
Benefits(3)
£’000

2011
Bonus
£’000

2011
Pension
£’000

2011
Total
£’000

2010
Total
£’000

15

–

–

–

15

15

100
12

1
3

–
–

–
149

101
164

104
164

15

–

–

–

15

15

142

4

–

149

295

298

The Directors have all voluntarily waived part of their emoluments with effect from December 2008.
A D W Newland sacrificed salary during the year. The Company elected to make contributions to a personal pension.
Benefits include amounts in respect of private medical insurance and taxation advice.
No bonuses or share awards were made to Executive Directors in the years ending 30 April 2011 or 2010.

Directors’ interests – share options
The Directors’ interests in the ordinary share options of the Company were as stated below:

Date of
grant

At
1 May
2010

18/07/2003
17/03/2004
29/07/2005
27/04/2006
21/03/2007

60,000
40,000
47,619
100,000
100,000

Name
I F Griffiths

347,619
A D W Newland

17/03/2004
29/07/2005
30/03/2006

Granted

Cancelled

Exercised

(60,000)
(40,000)

–

40,000
47,619
601,056
688,675

Lapsed

(100,000)

–
–
47,619
100,000
100,000
–

–

(40,000)

–

(40,000)

At
30 April
2011

–

Expiry
date

1.00
1.44
1.26
0.835
0.640

18/07/2006
17/03/2007
29/07/2008
27/04/2009
21/03/2010

17/07/2010
16/03/2011
28/07/2012
26/04/2013
20/03/2014

1.44
1.26
0.79

17/03/2007
29/07/2008
30/03/2009

16/03/2011
28/07/2012
29/03/2013

247,619
–
47,619
601,056

–

Earliest
exercise
date

Exercise
price (£)

648,675

No Directors’ options were granted, cancelled or exercised during the year. Options issued on the 18 July 2003 and 17 March 2004 lapsed during
the year.
Note 23 provides additional information on share options.
Shareholder return
The market price of the Company’s shares on 30 April 2011 was 24.75p and the range of market price during the period from 1 May 2010 until 30 April
2011 was between 18.25p (low) and 34.00p (high).
By order of the Board

Garth Selvey
Remuneration Committee Chairman
27 July 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of ANGLE plc
We have audited the Group and parent company Financial Statements (“the Financial Statements”) on pages 20 to 54. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group Financial Statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
parent company Financial Statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and
the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As more fully explained in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement on page 13, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial
Statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB’s website at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:
• the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 April 2011 and of the
Group’s loss for the year then ended;
• the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
• the parent company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
• the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Financial Statements are prepared is consistent with
the Financial Statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
• the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Colin Roberts (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
The Clock House
140 London Road
Guildford
Surrey
GU1 1UW
27 July 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 April 2011
2011

2010
(Restated*)
£

Note

£

Revenue
Other operating income

2
3

2,419,613
9,267

2,454,220
–

Change in fair value

4

174,814

640,228

Operating costs
Management services
Ventures
Controlled investments
Share based payments

5

23

Operating profit/(loss)

(2,190,523)
(500,354)
(283,083)
(46,306)

(2,858,041)

(3,020,266)

(254,347)

Finance income
Finance costs
Net finance income/(cost)

(2,064,485)
(429,270)
(339,366)
(24,920)

9

74,182

782
(7,747)

348
(8,346)

(6,965)

(7,998)

Profit/(loss) before tax

(261,312)

66,184

Profit/(loss) before controlled investments and tax
Controlled investments

80,250
(341,562)

326,715
(260,531)

Tax

10

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

11

–

136,516

(261,312)

202,700

(171,096)

(247,455)

(432,408)

(44,755)

22,741

319,210

22,741

319,210

(409,667)

274,455
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2011
Note
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations
Non-controlling interests
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

(183,066)
(171,096)
(78,246)
–

* Comparative figures have been restated to show continuing operations separately from discontinued operations – Note 11.

–
–

(432,408)

(44,755)

(182,796)
(171,096)

521,910
(247,455)

1.1

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings/(loss) per share
From continuing operations
Basic and Diluted (pence per share)
From discontinued operations
Basic and Diluted (pence per share)
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic and Diluted (pence per share)

202,700
(247,455)

1.1

Profit/(loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations
Non-controlling interests
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

£

2010
(Restated*)
£

(55,775)
–

–
–

(409,667)

274,455

(0.90)

0.76

(0.60)

(0.93)

(1.50)

(0.17)

12
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 April 2011
Note

2011
£

2010
£

13
13,18
14
15

2,360,811
1,500,000
8,523
443,027

2,200,311
1,548,942
19,446
124,781

4,312,361

3,893,480

322,949
–
619,118

650,308
12,809
846,784

942,067

1,509,901

5,254,428

5,403,381

3,043,728
14,126,365
623,440
2,553,356
(1,401)
(15,455,253)
(307,987)

2,713,293
13,701,935
1,156,874
2,553,356
(1,671)
(15,625,605)
(342,115)

4,582,248

4,156,067

1.1

(48,539)
4,533,709

–
4,156,067

20

221,625

98,001

221,625

98,001

499,094

1,149,313

Total current liabilities

499,094

1,149,313

Total liabilities

720,719

1,247,314

5,254,428

5,403,381

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Non-controlled investments
Other receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Taxation
Cash and cash equivalents

19

Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Issued capital
Share premium account
Share based payments reserve
Other reserve
Translation reserve
Retained earnings
ESOT shares

22

24

Equity attributable to equity holders of parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Controlled investments – loans
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

21

Total equity and liabilities
The Financial Statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 27 July 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

I F Griffiths
Director

A D W Newland
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 April 2011
2011
£
Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Profit)/loss on disposal of fixed assets
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Exchange differences
Net finance (income)/cost
Change in fair value
Share based payments

2010
(Restated*)
£

(261,312)

66,184

13,173
661
81,030
(12,552)
6,965
(174,814)
24,920

29,086
865
33,555
28,223
7,998
(640,228)
46,306

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

(321,929)
45,895
(547,239)

(428,011)
(164,040)
238,443

Operating cash flows
Research and development tax credits received
Corporation tax paid

(823,273)
12,809
–

(353,608)
–
(106,502)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

(810,464)

(460,110)

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Provision of convertible loans
Purchase of non-controlled investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Cash and cash equivalents acquired on deemed acquisition
Interest received

(2,911)
(1,801)
–
–
–
2,664
801

(10,795)
–
(95,175)
(16,865)
1,368,786
–
485

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

(1,247)

1,246,436

Financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of share capital
Interest paid

754,865
–

–
(855)

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

754,865

(855)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations

(56,846)

785,471

Discontinued operations
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

(169,536)

(257,766)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations

(169,536)

(257,766)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

(226,382)
846,784
(1,284)

527,705
319,819
(740)

619,118

846,784

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
* Comparative figures have been restated to show continuing operations separately from discontinued operations – Note 11.

During the period, investment of £160,500 was made in a non-controlled investment by conversion of trade receivables and working capital loans.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 April 2011
Attributable to equity holders of the Group

Issued
capital
£

Share
based
Share payments
premium
reserve
£
£

2,713,293 13,701,935
At 1 May 2009
For the year to 30 April 2010
Consolidated profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences in translating foreign operations
Total comprehensive income
Share based payments
Released on forfeiture/lapse
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

1,523,488

At 1 May 2010
2,713,293 13,701,935
For the year to 30 April 2011
Consolidated profit/(loss)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences in translating foreign operations
Total comprehensive income
Issue of shares
330,435
424,430
Share based payments
Released on forfeiture/lapse
Utilised on share schemes
Deemed acquisition of subsidiary

1,156,874

At 30 April 2011

3,043,728 14,126,365

Other Translation
reserve
reserve
£
£
2,553,356

Retained
earnings
£

(320,881) (16,008,032)

ESOT
shares
£
(342,115)

(44,755)
319,210
319,210
60,568
(378,469)
(48,713)

(342,115)

(354,162)
270
270
25,208
(511,516)
(47,126)
623,440

(354,162)

511,516
12,998
2,553,356

(1,401) (15,455,253)

3,821,044

319,210
274,455
60,568
–
–

(44,755)

(1,671) (15,625,605)

Total
equity
£

(44,755)

378,469
48,713
2,553,356

Total
ShareNonholders’ controlling
equity
interests
£
£

34,128
(307,987)

4,156,067

–

4,156,067

(354,162)

(78,246)

(432,408)

270
(353,892)
754,865
25,208
–
–
–

22,471
(55,775)

22,741
(409,667)
754,865
25,208
–
–
7,236

4,582,248

(48,539)

7,236

4,533,709

Share premium
Represents amounts subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, net of directly attributable share issue costs.
Other reserve
The other reserve is a “merger” reserve arising from the acquisition of the former holding company.
Translation reserve
The translation reserve account comprises cumulative exchange differences arising on consolidation from the translation of the Financial Statements
of international operations. Under IFRS this is separated from retained earnings.
ESOT shares
These relate to shares held by the ANGLE Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) and used to assist in meeting the obligations under employee
remuneration schemes.
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Share based payments reserve
The share based payments reserve account is used for the corresponding entry to the share based payments charged through a) the statement of
comprehensive income for staff incentive arrangements and advisor’s fee arrangements in ANGLE b) the statement of comprehensive income for
staff incentive arrangements in the controlled investments and c) the statement of financial position for acquired intangible assets in the controlled
investments comprising intellectual property (IP). These components are separately identified in the table below.
Transfers are made from this reserve to retained earnings as the related share options are exercised, lapse or expire or as a controlled investment
becomes non-controlled (a deemed disposal).
Share based payments reserve
ANGLE
employees/
advisors
£
At 30 April 2009
Charge for the year
Released on forfeiture/lapse
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries
At 30 April 2010
Charge for the year
Released on forfeiture/lapse
Utilised on share schemes
At 30 April 2011
For continuing and discontinued operations.

Controlled
investments
employees
£

Controlled
investments
IP
£

Total
£

1,311,986
58,870
(371,746)
–

65,708
1,698
(6,723)
(20,154)

145,794
–
–
(28,559)

1,523,488
60,568
(378,469)
(48,713)

999,110
21,463
(511,516)
(47,126)

40,529
3,745
–
–

117,235
–
–
–

1,156,874
25,208
(511,516)
(47,126)

461,931

44,274

117,235

623,440
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 April 2011
Accounting policies
1
1.1 Basis of preparation
The Annual Report and Accounts have been prepared on the basis of the recognition and measurement requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) in issue that have been endorsed by the EU for the year ended 30 April 2011. They have also been prepared in
accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 that apply to companies reporting under IFRS.
During the year a number of accounting standards were adopted for the first time. The only standard that has a significant effect on the reported
results or financial position of the Group is:
IAS 27 – Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Revised 2008):
This requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests where there is no change in control to be recorded in equity. The standard
did not require the restatement of previous transactions and therefore comparatives are shown at nil.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Standards and Interpretations not applied
At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statements, the following Standards and Interpretations (International Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee – IFRIC), which have not been applied in these Financial Statements, were in issue but not yet effective:
Endorsed by the European Union
First time adoption of IFRS – Additional exemptions for first time adopters and Exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosure for first time
IFRS 1
adopters
IFRS 2
Share based payments – Cash settled share based payment transactions
IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation – Amendment – Classification of rights issues
IAS 24
Related party disclosures (Revised)
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments
IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a minimum finding requirement
Not yet endorsed by the European Union
IFRS 1
First time adoption of IFRS – Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first time adoption
IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosure of financial instruments
IAS 12
Income Taxes – Amendment – Deferred tax – recovery of underlying assets
IFRS 9
Financial Instruments
IFRS 10
Consolidated financial statements
IFRS 11
Joint arrangements
IFRS 12
Disclosure of interests in other entities
IFRS 13
Fair value measurement
IAS 27
Separate financial statements (amended 2011)
IAS 28
Investments in associates and joint ventures (amended 2011)
The Directors have not yet assessed the impact of the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations for future periods.
IFRS has only been applied to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company has elected to keep and prepare its parent company Financial
Statements in accordance with UK GAAP. The Financial Statements and accounting policies of the Company are presented on pages 52 to 54.
1.2 Accounting convention
These Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets at
fair value, as required by IAS 39. The basis of consolidation is set out in Note 1.5.
1.3 Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial information, in the form of the primary statements contained in this report, is presented in accordance with International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”. IAS 1 (Revised) provides no definitive guidance as to the format of the statement of
comprehensive income, but states that key items should be disclosed. It also encourages additional line items to be added and the re-ordering
of items presented on the face of the statement of comprehensive income when appropriate for a proper understanding of the entity’s financial
performance. ANGLE has reviewed the items disclosed separately on the face of the statement of comprehensive income and the components
of financial performance considered by management to be significant, or for which separate disclosure would assist, both in a better understanding
of financial performance and in making projections of future results. This has been done taking into account the materiality, nature and function
of components of income and expense.
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1.4 Going concern
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Group will be able to continue its operations for
the foreseeable future.
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and financial position are set out in the
Chairman’s and Chief Executive’s Statements on pages 4 to 7. The principal risks and uncertainties are stated in the Directors’ report. In addition Note
17 to the Financial Statements includes details of the Group’s exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, capital risk and investment risk. In order to improve
the Group’s working capital position the Directors have implemented a number of initiatives which have or will reduce costs and improve cash flows.
On 15 July 2011, the Company announced that it had successfully completed a fundraising of approximately £1.2 million net of costs. It is anticipated
that trading will commence in the Fundraising shares in August 2011. The allotment of the Fundraising shares is conditional on admission of the
Fundraising shares to trading on AIM becoming effective in accordance with the AIM rules for Companies and the Company receiving Advance
Assurance from HMRC of eligibility for EIS relief. The Company has previously received Advance Assurance from HMRC in February 2006 and
September 2010 and nothing has fundamentally changed within the Group since these assurances were received, although the qualifying conditions
have been relaxed in certain areas. Based on its understanding of the current rules, and advice received, the Company believes these conditions will
be met.
The Directors have prepared and reviewed the financial projections for the 12 month period from the date of signing of these Financial Statements
and, based on the level of existing cash, projected income and expenditure and other sources of funding, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly the going
concern basis has been used in preparing the Financial Statements.
1.5 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than half of the voting rights, so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights are considered when assessing whether the Group controls an entity.
Subsidiary undertakings are consolidated on the basis of the acquisition method of accounting. Under this method of accounting the results of
subsidiaries sold or acquired are included in the statement of comprehensive income up to, or from the date control passes. Subsidiaries’
accounting policies are amended where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. The interests of noncontrolling shareholders may be initially measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquired entity’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition by acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests on initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest
having a deficit balance.
Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated fully on consolidation and the consolidated accounts reflect external transactions only.
Deemed disposals
Where the Group ceases to control an entity by means other than disposal of equity, such as the entity issuing shares to third parties, the entity
ceases to be a subsidiary and is no longer consolidated. Any gain or loss arising on the “deemed disposal” is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Associates
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but does not control, generally accompanied by a shareholding of between
20% to 50% of the equity or voting rights. The Group has elected to treat such investments in associates as accounted for in accordance with IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and upon initial recognition these investments are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss.
Other investments
Other investments are generally investments where the Group owns less than 20% of the equity or voting rights. In accordance with IAS 39, upon
initial recognition such investments are designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued
Accounting policies continued
1
1.6 Business combinations
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquired entity. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets is recorded
as goodwill. When the initial accounting for a business combination is determined provisionally, any adjustments to the provisional values allocated
are made within twelve months of the acquisition date and are effected prospectively from the date of acquisition. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement as incurred.
Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held interests in the acquired entity are re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date at which the Group attains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
1.7 Investments
The Directors consider that a substantial measure of the performance of the Group is assessed through changes in fair value arising from the
investment activity of the Group. Consequently the Group classifies all its investments that are not controlled investments as being designated
on initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Treatment of gains and losses arising on fair value
Investments that are not controlled investments are shown on the statement of financial position at their fair value and any associated changes in
fair value are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period they arise.
Valuation policy
In determining fair value, investments have been valued by the Directors in compliance with the principles of the International Private Equity
and Venture Capital Guidelines (edition August 2010), as recommended by the British Venture Capital Association (BVCA). The key policies are
detailed below.
Listed investments – the fair values of quoted investments are based on bid prices at the reporting date.
Unlisted investments – the valuation methodology used most commonly by the Group is the “price of recent investment”, reflecting the early stage
nature of the investments. The following considerations are used when calculating the fair value using the “price of recent investment” guidelines:
• Where the investment being valued was itself made recently, its cost will generally provide a good indication of fair value; and
• Where there has been any recent investment by third parties, the price of that investment will provide a basis of the valuation.
Where a fair value cannot be estimated reliably the investment is reported at the carrying value at the previous reporting date unless there is
evidence that the investment has since been impaired.
Earn-outs are a deferred payment conditional on the future performance of the acquired asset and are shown on the statement of financial
position at fair value. The Directors consider a number of valuation methodologies including a “balance of probabilities” and discounted cash flow
in order to determine a fair value. The earn-out is re-valued based on any new information received relating to progress against plans, levels of sales
and any other relevant factors.
Convertible loan notes
As well as direct investment into Progeny® companies the Group uses other financial instruments such as convertible loans.
Under IAS 28 Investments in Associates, financial instruments that are presently exercisable are taken into account in determining control and
significant influence and this may affect the basis of consolidation.
Under IAS 39 convertible loan notes are financial assets and are defined as compound financial instruments consisting of a liability component and
an equity component. At the date of issue there is a requirement to split the instrument between its debt and equity components.
The debt component is classified under investments as “Loans and receivables” and subsequently carried in the statement of financial position at
cost less any impairment.
The equity component is classified under investments and subsequently carried in the statement of financial position at fair value. The right to
convert the loan into equity represents an embedded derivative (the option) and as such needs to be re-measured to fair value at each reporting
date with any changes in fair value of this right taken through the statement of comprehensive income.
Convertible loans issued in a different functional currency to the issuing entity are treated the same, however, there may also be an associated
financial instrument (see policy 1.18 below) to manage the risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.
1.8 Revenue
Revenue represents amounts receivable for goods and services net of value added tax.
Management services revenues are recognised in proportion to the stage of completion of each project. The stage of completion takes into
account the milestones achieved in relation to the project deliverables.
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1.9 Government Grants
Government grants receivable or received in respect of revenue expenditure are released to the profit and loss as the related expenditure is
incurred when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant money will be received and any conditions attached to them have been fulfilled.
Grant income receivable is held on the balance sheet as accrued income and grant income received in advance of expenditure is held on the
balance sheet as deferred income.
1.10 Employee benefits
Share based payments
Share based incentive arrangements which allow Group employees to acquire shares of the Company may be provided to staff. The fair value of
options granted is recognised as a cost of employment with a corresponding increase in equity. In accordance with IFRS 2, Share options granted
after 7 November 2002 which had not vested by 1 May 2005 are valued at the date of grant using an appropriate option pricing model and are
charged to operating costs over the vesting period of the award. The annual charge is modified to take account of options granted to employees
who leave the Group during the performance or vesting period and forfeit their rights to the share options and in the case of non-market related
performance conditions, where it becomes unlikely they will vest. The fair value of options granted to professional advisors as part consideration for
services in connection with fund raising is recognised as an expense against share premium account with a corresponding increase in equity. Such
options vest and are expensed on successful completion of the services.
Pension obligations
Pension costs are charged against profits as they fall due and represent the amount of contributions payable to a defined contribution scheme in
the US or to employee personal pension schemes on an individual basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.
A liability for short term compensated absences, such as holiday, is recognised for the amount the Group may be required to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
1.11 Taxes
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax is provided for in full on all temporary differences resulting from the carrying value of an asset or liability and its tax base, except where
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability that at the date of initial recognition does not
affect accounting or taxable profit or loss on a transaction that is not a business combination. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax liability is settled
or deferred tax asset realised.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised on any increase in the fair value of investments to the extent that substantial shareholdings relief or unutilised
losses may be unavailable. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. IAS 12 Income Taxes requires the separate disclosure of deferred tax assets and liabilities on the
Group’s statement of financial position.
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to taxes
levied by the same tax authority, and the Group intends to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultaneously.
1.12 Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment value. Cost includes expenditure that is
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each
asset over its expected useful economic life. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful economic life on the same
basis as owned assets, or where shorter, the lease term. Assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The following rates are used:
Computer equipment
Fixtures, fittings and equipment
Laboratory equipment

33.33%
33.33%
20%

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued
Accounting policies continued
1
1.13 Intangible assets other than goodwill
Computer software
Under IAS 38 – Intangible Assets, acquired computer software should be capitalised as an intangible asset unless it is an integral part of the related
hardware (such as the operating system) where it remains as an item of property, plant and equipment.
Internally developed computer software will be capitalised in accordance with the research and development accounting policy. If the software is
developed for in-house use the capitalised amount is reclassified from research and development to computer software.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of the software over its estimated useful economic life and is included
within corporate operating costs which are recharged to Management services and Ventures.
Research and development
Research expenditure is written off as incurred.
Development expenditure is also written off, except where the Directors are satisfied that a new or significantly improved product or process results
and other relevant IAS 38 criteria are met as to the technical, commercial and financial viability of individual projects that would allow such costs to
be capitalised. In such cases, the identifiable expenditure is capitalised and amortised over the period during which benefits are expected.
Intellectual Property (IP)
IP (comprising patents, know-how, copyright and licences) is acquired by the Group as a result of either a business combination (and initially
recognised at fair value in accordance with IFRS 3 – “Business Combinations”) or a purchase at cost. The Group’s view is that these assets have a
finite useful life and to that extent they should be amortised over their respective unexpired periods with provision made for impairment when
required. Assets in development are not amortised until the Group is generating an economic return from the underlying asset. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of IP over its estimated useful economic lives, which is estimated at five years for
physical sciences IP and ten years for biosciences IP, but may be determined at different periods depending on the remaining patent life or specific
terms of licences or agreements. Amortisation is included within Operating costs – Controlled investments.
Impairment
Intangible assets not subject to amortisation are subject to annual impairment reviews. Intangible assets are also reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In the event that an intangible asset will no longer be used or a patent is
abandoned, the balance of unamortised expenditure is written off.
Impairment reviews require the estimation of the recoverable amount based on value-in-use calculations. Intangible assets relate typically to inprocess R&D and require broader assumptions than for developed technology. Key assumptions taken into consideration relate to technological,
market and financial risks and include the chance of product launch taking into account the stage of development of the asset, scale of milestone
and royalty payments, overall market opportunities, market size and competitor activity, estimated useful lives of assets such as patents, contractual
relationships and discount rates to determine present values of cash flows.
1.14 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings, represents the excess fair value of the consideration given over the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is not subject to amortisation but is recognised as
an asset and is tested annually for impairment, and whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Negative goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.
1.15 Leases
Assets obtained under hire purchase contracts and finance leases, and any other leases that entail taking substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset, are capitalised on the statement of financial position and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
economic lives. Obligations under such agreements are included in trade and other payables net of the finance charge allocated to future periods.
The finance element of the rental payment is charged to the statement of comprehensive income so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
charge on the net obligation outstanding in each period.
1.16 Employee Share Ownership Trust
The Group has an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) to assist with the obligations under share option and other employee remuneration
schemes. The ESOT is consolidated as if it were a subsidiary. Shares in the Group held by the ESOT are stated at cost and presented in the statement
of financial position as a deduction from equity under the heading of “ESOT Shares”. Finance and administration costs relating to the ESOT are
charged to operating costs.
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1.17 Foreign currency
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the Group’s functional and presentational currency. The Group
determines the functional currency of each entity and items included in the Financial Statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. The functional currencies of the Group’s operations are sterling and US dollars.
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and held at cost use the exchange rate at the date of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and held at fair value use the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined.
Profits and losses on both the individual transactions during the period and monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with in the statement of
comprehensive income.
On consolidation, the statements of comprehensive income of the foreign subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange rates for the period
and the statement of financial position at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The exchange differences arising as a result of translating
statements of comprehensive income at average rates and restating opening net assets at closing rates are taken to the translation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.
The Group has elected to apply the exemption in IFRS 1 “First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” which allows the
cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations to be deemed to be zero at the date of transition to IFRS. The Group has similarly elected
that the profit or loss on any subsequent disposal of any foreign operation shall exclude translation differences that arose before the date of
transition.
1.18 Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short term deposits as defined previously and other
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of
outstanding short-term borrowings.
Deposits
Deposits in the statement of financial position comprise longer term deposits with an original maturity of greater than three months.
Bank loans, loan notes and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowings.
After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Other assets
Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, include trade and other receivables and are stated at their amortised
cost. They are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated based on expected discounted future cash flows. Any change in the level of impairment is recognised directly in
the statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss is reversed at subsequent reporting dates to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed its carrying value had no impairment loss been recognised.
Other liabilities
Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, include trade and other payables and are stated based on their
amortised cost at the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the reporting date.
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1
1.19 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation of uncertain timing or amount as a result of past events, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provisions are measured at the
Directors’ best estimate of the amount to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted back to present value if the effect is
material. Changes in provisions are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the period.
1.20 Operating segments
The Group determines and presents operating segments based on the reporting information that is provided to the Board of Directors to allow
them to make operating decisions. The Board of Directors are responsible for all significant decisions and collectively are the Chief Operating
Decision-Making (CODM) body as defined by IFRS 8.
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn income and incur expenses,
including income and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s results are reviewed
regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.
1.21 Restructuring charges
Restructuring charges are accrued against operating income in the period in which management has committed to a plan and in which the liability
has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
1.22 Discontinued operations
Discontinued operations relate to a component of an entity that has been abandoned and represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operation. The results of discontinued operations are shown separately from continuing operations on 1) the consolidated
income statement comprising the post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations and 2) the consolidated statement of cash flows. The financial
information of discontinued operations is excluded from the respective captions in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the prior year comparatives.
1.23 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of the Financial Statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates and assumptions and judgements are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, and
are believed to be reasonable, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.
The estimates and assumptions and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities are described below.
Valuation of unlisted investments held at fair value (Notes 1.7 and 13)
Valuations of unquoted equity investments are based on the last external funding round where one has taken place, otherwise at cost, less any
provision for impairment if the most recent external funding round establishes a valuation lower than the cost or circumstances indicate the cost
may not be recovered. Judgements are required in a number of areas when determining valuation including the treatment of different classes of
shares with different rights and a decision on whether or not to impair value and the quantum of the impairment.
Valuation of Other receivables held at fair value (Note 13)
Valuation of other receivables relates to the value attributed to an earn-out currently in litigation by the major Acolyte shareholder. There is
uncertainty as to the eventual outcome and judgement has been required in order to estimate a fair value.
Fair values of acquired assets and liabilities (Note 16)
When acquiring a business, the Group has to make judgements and best estimates about the fair value allocation of the purchase price, particularly
as this relates to the value of separately identifiable intangible assets and goodwill.
Valuation and impairment of intangible assets (Note 15)
The Group is required to test, at least annually, whether intangible assets have suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount is determined
using, amongst others, value-in-use calculations. The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of these cash flows. When reviewing intangible assets for impairment the Group has had to
make various assumptions and estimates of individual components and their potential value and potential impairment impact. The Group considers
that for each of these variables there is a range of reasonably possible alternative values, which results in a range of fair value estimates. None of
these estimates of fair value is considered more appropriate or relevant than any other and therefore determining a fair value requires considerable
judgement.
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Revenue and operating segment analysis
2
The Group operates in one principal area of activity – technology wealth creation through the commercialisation of intellectual property and the
development of technology industry.
For management reporting purposes, the Group is divided into the following operating segments:
• Management services – provision of Management services to clients including research organisations, corporate and governmental organisations
on a fee-for-service basis. This business segment provides a platform for the Ventures activities.
• Ventures – activities to establish, develop and create value in technology companies. The Group uses a proprietary Progeny® process to develop
these companies, which are referred to as Progeny® companies. ANGLE’s unique business model involves ANGLE founding new companies which
it controls during the critical early stages of development, before securing third party funding.
Under IFRS, the accounting for Progeny® companies divides into controlled investments and non-controlled investments:
– Controlled investments – Progeny® companies where the Group has control, typically as a result of owning in excess of 50% of the equity. These
are consolidated and the Group’s investment costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive income.
– Non-controlled investments – Progeny® companies where the Group does not have control. These investments are held on the statement of
financial position at fair value, with changes in fair value passing through the statement of comprehensive income.
The nature of these operations is significantly different.
In assessing performance and making resource allocation decisions, the Board of Directors reviews each segment. The tables below show the
operating results for continuing operations by segment together with assets where there has been a material change.
Investment
Management
Services
£
Year ended 30 April 2011
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue
Change in fair value
Operating costs
Operating profit/(loss) before other items
(other operating income, share based payments and tax)
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Investments (non-current)
Other receivables (non-current)
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Trade and other receivables (current)
Cash and cash equivalents

2,358,273
(2,064,485)
293,788

Ventures
£

Controlled Non-controlled
investments
investments
£
£

Total
£

61,340
(17,067)
(429,270)

–
–
(339,366)

191,881

2,419,613
174,814
(2,833,121)

(384,997)

(339,366)

191,881

(238,694)

2,360,811
1,500,000

2,360,811
1,500,000
451,550
322,949
619,118

3,860,811

5,254,428

329,876
322,573
583,656

121,674
376
35,462

1,236,105

157,512

Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

376,781
–

122,313
221,625

499,094
221,625

Total

376,781

343,938

720,719

Total
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Revenue and operating segment analysis continued
Investment
Management
Services
£

Year ended 30 April 2010
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Revenue
Change in fair value
Operating costs
Operating profit/(loss) before share based payments and tax
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Investments (non-current)
Other receivables (non-current)
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Trade and other receivables (current)
Taxation
Cash and cash equivalents

2,369,067
(2,190,523)
178,544

Ventures
£

58,938
5,526
(500,354)
(435,890)

14,556
636,325

Controlled Non-controlled
investments
investments
£
£

26,215
–
(283,083)
(256,868)

634,702
634,702

Total
(Restated)
£

2,454,220
640,228
(2,973,960)
120,488

2,200,311
1,548,942

2,200,311
1,548,942
144,227
650,308
12,809
846,784

3,749,253

5,403,381

845,605

129,671
13,983
12,809
1,179

Total

1,496,486

157,642

Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

1,090,932
–

58,381
98,001

1,149,313
98,001

Total

1,090,932

156,382

1,247,314

All significant decisions are made by the Board of Directors, with implementation of that decision on a Group-wide basis. All “investment” activities
are managed on a global basis.
Over 98% of segment revenues and segment assets by geographical location are based in the UK.
The revenue of the Group for the year has been primarily derived from its Management services activities. In addition the Group managed a grant
voucher scheme on behalf of the London Development Agency. The gross value of the vouchers paid during the year was £0.8 million (2010: £1.0
million) and passed through the Group’s books as both income and expenditure, however, due to revenue recognition rules this is classified as
“agency” revenues and is not shown in our total revenues.
In addition the Group provides Ventures services to investments in the form of non-executive director services, management, accounting and
administration support for which it receives fees.
Major customers
Revenues in the Management services business are mainly generated from a small number of key clients and several of these clients individually
account for revenues in excess of 10% of Group revenue.
2011

2010
(Restated)

% of total revenues
Client one
Client two
Client three

35%
31%
23%

3
Other operating income
Other operating income relates to income from Government research and development grants in connection with a controlled investment.

46%
18%
17%
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4

Change in fair value through statement of comprehensive income
2011
£

2010
£

Change in fair value of investments (Note 13)
Fair value gain/(loss) on deemed disposal of subsidiaries
Fair value gain/(loss) on deemed acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 16)

–
(17,067)
191,881

634,702
5,526
–

Change in fair value

174,814

640,228

5

Operating costs
2011
£

2010
(Restated)
£

Staff costs – employees (Note 7)
Depreciation – owned assets
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 15)
Amortisation of intangible assets
Operating lease costs
Auditor’s remuneration
Bad debts
Research and development
Direct costs of Management services contracts
Other operating costs

1,872,811
13,173
80,000
1,030
82,994
86,229
4,000
11,861
361,714
344,229

1,753,733
29,086
25,094
8,461
99,080
75,635
–
25,252
579,539
424,386

Total operating costs

2,858,041

3,020,266

As explained in Note 2, grant voucher costs of £0.8 million (2010: £1.0 million) passed through our accounts but are excluded from these costs as they
are netted off with the associated income. The goodwill impairment of £98,380 arising on the initial recognition of a deemed acquisition (Note 16)
was charged against the fair value gain arising from the same transaction in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
2011
£

2010
£

18,500
33,550
5,000

18,500
32,946
3,000

15,950
5,249
7,980

10,300
6,691
4,198

Sub-total charged to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

86,229

75,635

Secondary placing of shares (charged to share premium)
Total auditor’s remuneration

1,750
87,979

–
75,635

2011
£

2010
£

294,788

297,805

Auditor’s remuneration
Audit services
Statutory audit of parent and consolidated accounts
Statutory audit of subsidiaries
Other
Non-audit services
Tax compliance services
Tax advisory services
Project compliance reviews

6

Directors’ emoluments

Emoluments for qualifying services including retirement benefits of £148,967 (2010: £152,177)

Emoluments disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the highest paid Director including retirement benefits of £148,967 (2010: £152,177):
Emoluments for qualifying services
Disclosures relating to individual Directors’ emoluments are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 17 to 18.

163,495

164,170
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7
Employment costs
The aggregate employment costs of staff (including Directors) for the year was:
2011
£

2010
(Restated)
£

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs (Note 8)

1,531,737
167,187
148,967

1,404,636
150,614
152,177

Employee share based payment charge (Note 23)

1,847,891
24,920

1,707,427
46,306

Staff costs from continuing operations
Staff costs from discontinued operations

1,872,811
173,016

1,753,733
363,058

Total staff costs

2,045,827

2,116,791

The key management personnel are the Directors and their remuneration is disclosed within the remuneration report on pages 17 to 18.
Number of employees
The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) during the year was:
2011
Number

2010
(Restated)
Number

Executives
Administration
Controlled investments

31
10
1

22
10
1

Discontinued operations

42
2

33
6

Total

44

39

8
Pension costs
The Group made UK pension contributions of £148,967 (2010: £152,177) directly to personal pension plan schemes. Contributions to personal pension
plan schemes of £8,762 (2010: £43,437) were payable at the year end and are included in trade and other payables.
9

Net finance income

Finance income

2011
£

2010
£

782

348

Finance costs
Bank and other interest

(7,747)

(8,346)

Net finance income/(cost)

(6,965)

(7,998)
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10 Tax
The Group is eligible for the substantial shareholdings relief UK corporation tax exemption. This results in the gain from any disposals of UK investments
where the Group has an equity stake greater than 10%, and subject to certain other tests, being free of corporation tax.
Tax is therefore based on the profits in the Management services business as relieved by losses incurred in the establishment and development of
ventures. Loss relief may not absorb the tax in relation to all of the profits and where this occurs tax is provided on the basis of the estimated effective
tax rate for the full year.
Controlled investments undertake research and development activities. In the UK these activities qualify for tax relief resulting in tax credits.
2011
£

2010
£

Current tax:
Corporation tax
Current year
Prior year
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences

–
–

Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

–

(136,516)

2011

2010
(Restated)
£

–

–

£
Corporation tax
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax

–
(136,516)

(261,312)

66,184

Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities at 27.8% (28%)

(72,645)

18,531

Factors affecting charge:
Capital allowances for period in excess of depreciation
Disallowable expenses
Other tax adjustments
Change in fair value of investments
Share based payments
Unutilised losses carried forward
Prior year adjustment

(2,308)
2,092
–
(48,598)
6,928
114,531
–

134
3,078
(961)
(179,264)
12,966
145,516
(136,516)

Tax charge/(credit) for year

–

(136,516)

The estimated value of the deferred tax asset not recognised, measured at a standard rate of 26% (2010: 28%) is £4,556,074 (2010: £4,541,329).
Deferred tax assets relate to unutilised tax losses. No deferred tax liability is provided for any valuation uplifts due to the substantial shareholder
exemption or where this may not be available due to the availability of unutilised tax losses. The deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the
financial statements as the Directors consider there to be sufficient uncertainty surrounding the reversal of the underlying temporary differences.
The deferred tax asset would be recovered if there were future taxable profits from which the trading losses can be deducted.
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In the Annual Report and Accounts 2010, the Group announced its intention to discontinue its US operating business. The US business was not classified
as a discontinued operation at 30 April 2010 as plans were still under development. The Group initiated an orderly wind-down of the US operations at
the beginning of the financial year which was substantially completed during the financial year. In accordance with IFRS 5 – “Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations” this business has been classified as a discontinued operation and the prior periods have been restated to show
the discontinued operation separately from continuing operations. A summary of the results is set out below:
2010
£

2011
£
Results of discontinued operation
Revenue
Operating costs – Management services
Operating costs – Ventures
Restructuring costs
Share based payments
Net finance income

76,695
(28,329)
(40,817)
(178,118)
(288)
(239)

245,470
(328,437)
(150,226)
–
(14,262)
–

Profit/(loss) for the year

(171,096)

(247,455)

The consolidated statement of cash flows shows the net cash used in the operating activities of the discontinued operations. The impact of the
discontinued operations on the statement of financial position is minimal.
12 Earnings/(loss) per share
The basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated on an after tax loss of £432,408 (2010: loss £44,755) from continuing and discontinued
operations. Share options are non-dilutive for 2011 and 2010 because of the overall loss.
2011
£
Profit/(loss) for the financial year from
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Continuing and discontinued operations

(261,312)
(171,096)
(432,408)

2010
£
202,700
(247,455)
(44,755)

Number
of shares

Number
of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ESOT shares

28,943,533
(211,385)

27,132,931
(300,264)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares – basic
Effect of potential dilutive share options

28,732,148
–

26,832,667
–

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares – diluted

28,732,148

26,832,667

Earnings/(loss) per share
From continuing operations – basic and diluted (pence per share)
From discontinued operations – basic and diluted (pence per share)
From continuing and discontinued operations – basic and diluted (pence per share)

(0.90)
(0.60)
(1.50)

0.76
(0.93)
(0.17)
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13 Non-controlled investments and Other receivables
The Group’s investment portfolio comprises investments in Progeny® companies. Progeny® companies are businesses established by ANGLE to
commercialise intellectual property using ANGLE’s proprietary Progeny® process.
Where the Group has control of a Progeny® company (typically owning more than 50% of the equity), these are defined as controlled investments
and are consolidated as subsidiaries. At the point control no longer exists, a deemed profit arises and the non-controlled investment is held at fair
value in the statement of financial position. In the year to 30 April 2011 costs before taxation relating to controlled investments of £0.3 million were
charged to the statement of comprehensive income (2010: £0.3 million).
Where the Group does not control a Progeny® company (typically owning less than 50% of the equity), these are defined as non-controlled
investments and held on the statement of financial position at fair value, as set out in the table below:

Non-current
assets
Unquoted
£

Current
assets
Quoted
£
499,165
–
(1,368,785)
869,620

Total
Noncontrolled
Investments
£

At 30 April 2009
Investments
Disposals
Change in fair value

2,395,000
40,229
–
(234,918)

2,894,165
40,229
(1,368,785)
634,702

At 30 April 2010
Investments

2,200,311
160,500

–
–

2,200,311
160,500

At 30 April 2011

2,360,811

–

2,360,811

Investments are made directly and in the form of loans. The loans are normally convertible into equity and are non-interest bearing.
The holding period of ANGLE’s investments in unquoted companies is on average greater than one year. It is not possible to identify with reasonable
certainty investments that will be sold within one year. For this reason the portfolio is classified as non-current.
The Board has considered a number of factors in determining whether there is evidence that the fair value of an investment has been impaired
since its last valuation. These factors have included 1) the positives and negatives in the progress of the investment 2) the current and forecast
financial situation of the investment and its ability to make timely sales 3) the original funding environment and the current funding environment and
4) the performance of various small cap and tech indices including AIM, Techmark and NASDAQ in the relevant period.
Note 17 provides information on the fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities.
Other receivables
ANGLE’s Progeny® company Acolyte Biomedica (medical diagnostics/MRSA detection) was sold in February 2007. ANGLE was due an earn-out of
up to £4.7 million receivable early in 2010. This is subject to dispute between the former Acolyte shareholders and the purchaser.
ANGLE is awaiting the outcome of legal action by the major Acolyte shareholder. The Court case commenced in June 2011 and is currently in
summer recess. A judgement is expected to be reached in October. Once the outcome of this action is known, ANGLE expects to pursue its own
claim against the purchaser. At present ANGLE has no exposure to legal costs.
A fair value of £1.5 million is included in relation to this in ANGLE’s statement of financial position under the “Other receivables” category at 30 April
2011 unchanged from 30 April 2010.
Based on the currently available information and legal advice, the Directors believe that there will eventually be a significant return from this
investment. In present circumstances, the Directors believe that it is appropriate to hold the asset at its most recent fair value, but note that the value
may be revised in the future as further information becomes available.
Group investments at the end of the year comprise the following:

Non-current asset investments
Geomerics Limited(1)
(1)

Principal activity

Class of
share held

Computational graphics

Ordinary & B Ordinary

Holding
%
32.59

The effective Group holdings in individual investments are shown before a) the effects of any dilutive share options or convertible loans and b) additional ANGLE
holdings from convertible loans or warrants within the individual investments.
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The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the results of these investments for the last relevant financial year were as follows:
Date of
financial
statements
Geomerics Limited

28/02/2010

Net
assets
(512,639)

Profit/(loss)
for the year
(957,005)

Recent Financial Statements are not always publicly available and management information is deemed commercially sensitive. Net assets and profit/(loss)
figures are therefore based on publicly available information – results statements or the most recently filed Accounts with Companies House.
Subsidiaries
The following subsidiaries have been consolidated into the Group Financial Statements using the acquisition method of accounting:
Controlled investments
Company Name

Principal activity

Class of
share held

NeuroTargets Limited(1)(2)
Novocellus Limited(1)
Parsortix Inc(1)

New drug targets
IVF diagnostics
Cell separation

Ordinary
Ordinary
Common & Preferred

Holding
%
65.39
81.89
80.10

All “Limited” companies incorporated in England & Wales. All “Inc” companies incorporated in the US.
(1)
(2)

The effective Group holdings in individual investments are shown before a) the effects of any dilutive share options or convertible loans and b) additional ANGLE
holdings from convertible loans or warrants within the individual investments.
The holding shown is before the minority interest in Progeny bioVentures Limited. The holding after the minority interest would be 65.01%.

Operating companies
Principal Subsidiaries

Country of
registration or
incorporation

Class of
share held

ANGLE Technology Limited*
ANGLE Technology Ventures Limited
ANGLE Ventures Limited*
Progeny bioVentures Limited

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

* subsidiary held directly

The principal activity of these businesses for the last relevant financial year was as follows:
Principal Subsidiaries

Principal activity

ANGLE Technology Limited
ANGLE Technology Ventures Limited
ANGLE Ventures Limited
Progeny bioVentures Limited

Principal UK company – Management services
Establishment and growth of technology companies
Establishment and growth of technology companies
Establishment and growth of biotech companies

Holding
%
100.00
100.00
100.00
96.50
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14

Property, plant and equipment

Cost
At 1 May 2009
Additions
Disposals
Deemed disposals
Exchange movements

Computer
equipment
£

Laboratory
equipment
£

Fixtures,
fittings &
equipment
£

Total
£

160,394

89,332

69,475

319,201

–
(1,558)
(17,517)
(787)

10,795
(2,701)
(22,094)
(2,279)

49,613

302,922

1,188
(5,358)
–

2,911
(84,756)
(285)

10,795
(1,143)
(4,577)
(1,492)

At 30 April 2010

163,977

Additions
Disposals
Exchange movements

1,723
(79,398)
(285)

–
–
–
–
89,332
–
–
–

At 30 April 2011

86,017

89,332

45,443

220,792

Depreciation
At 1 May 2009

147,260

66,381

57,714

271,355

17,479
–
–
–

3,650
(693)
(11,275)
(348)

29,984
(1,836)
(14,303)
(1,724)

Charge for the year
Disposals
Deemed disposals
Exchange movements

8,855
(1,143)
(3,028)
(1,376)

At 30 April 2010

150,568

83,860

49,048

283,476

Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange movements

7,602
(78,737)
(285)

5,472
–
–

99
(5,358)
–

13,173
(84,095)
(285)

79,148

89,332

43,789

212,269

At 30 April 2011
Net book value
At 30 April 2011

6,869

–

1,654

8,523

At 30 April 2010

13,409

5,472

565

19,446
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Intangible assets
Intellectual
property
£

Computer
software
£

Licences
£

Goodwill
£

Total
£

Cost or deemed cost
At 1 May 2009
Deemed disposals
Exchange movements

251,753
–
(3,385)

21,921
(6,262)
(363)

36,156
(8,204)
(309)

–
–
–

309,830
(14,466)
(4,057)

At 30 April 2010
Additions
Deemed acquisition
Deemed disposals
Exchange movements

248,368
–
400,000
–
(2,525)

15,296
1,801
–
–
–

27,643
–
–
(27,643)
–

–
–
98,380
–
–

291,307
1,801
498,380
(27,643)
(2,525)

At 30 April 2011

645,843

17,097

98,380

761,320

95,864
3,538
–
24,766
–

16,992
2,447
(4,646)
–
(78)

33,121
2,476
(8,204)
328
(78)

–
–
–
–
–

145,977
8,461
(12,850)
25,094
(156)

124,168

14,715

27,643

–

166,526

–
–
80,000

1,030
–
–

–
(27,643)
–

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 May 2009
Charge for the year
Deemed disposals
Impairment
Exchange movements
At 30 April 2010
Charge for the year
Deemed disposals
Impairment

–

–
–
98,380

1,030
(27,643)
178,380

At 30 April 2011

204,168

15,745

–

98,380

318,293

Net book value
At 30 April 2011

441,675

1,352

–

–

443,027

At 30 April 2010

124,200

581

–

–

124,781

Intellectual property (IP) was added as a result of the deemed acquisition of NeuroTargets (see Note 16) or in previous years through acquisitions
made by controlled investments in share for share exchanges under the terms of IP Option Exercise Agreements or the issue of new shares in
exchange for the assignment or exclusive rights to the IP. An impairment charge has been made on the acquired NeuroTargets IP reflecting the
termination of the University of Bristol’s Wellcome Trust funding. The goodwill impairment of £98,380 arising on the initial recognition of a deemed
acquisition (Note 16) was charged against the fair value gain arising from the same transaction in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

ANGLE plc Annual Report & Accounts 2011 Page 43

16 Acquisition of subsidiary
At the start of the year the Group had the potential right to convert certain loans into shares in NeuroTargets Limited, however, at that time there was
no economic case for conversion. The Company made commercial progress and its licensing partner announced on 16 July 2010 further funding
from Wellcome Trust to progress its IP and technology development. This gave economic value to potential conversion. The company has been
consolidated from 16 July 2010 and this is deemed as an acquisition. One of the loans was repayable in September 2010 following the expiry of the
fifth anniversary of the Loan Agreement. The loan was converted resulting in a Group shareholding of 65%.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of NeuroTargets, determined in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies at the date of
deemed acquisition, were:
Previous
Fair value
Carrying recognised on
acquisition
Value
£
£
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Convertible and other loans
Intangible assets

2,664
32,725
(34,386)
(391,348)
–

Net assets/(liabilities)

(390,345)

Parent’s equity interest
Non-controlling interests
Fair value of deemed acquisition consideration
Goodwill arising on initial recognition of deemed acquisition

2,664
32,725
(34,386)
(391,348)
400,000
9,655
2,419
7,236
100,799
98,380

Intangible assets acquired comprise intellectual property (patents), know-how, developed technology, in-process research and development and
the licence deal with the University of Bristol. Intangible assets are only recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Company is not yet generating an economic return from these assets so there is no charge for amortisation although the assets remain subject to
impairment reviews.
The recognition of intangible assets could potentially result in a deferred tax liability. However, due to the availability of tax losses that would be
available to the Group, an associated tax asset would be available which would be in excess of the deferred tax liability on the intangible assets.
A deferred tax liability has therefore not been recognised on acquisition. No additional deferred tax asset has been recognised for NeuroTargets due
to the uncertainty that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.
Goodwill arose following the deemed acquisition of NeuroTargets and represents the excess of the consideration given over the fair value of the
shareholders’ equity interest in the separately identifiable assets and liabilities recognised on acquisition. The Goodwill was immediately impaired as
the value of the assets and liabilities recognised on deemed acquisition was determined to be a fair value.
From the date of deemed acquisition to 30 April 2011, the business contributed £nil in revenues and incurred a loss before tax of £21,688. If the
company had been acquired from the start of the year it would have contributed £nil in revenues and incurred a loss before tax of £40,847.
17 Financial risk management
Overview
The Group is exposed, through its normal operations, to a number of financial risks, the most significant of which are credit, liquidity and investment
(market) risks. Controlled investments are consolidated into the Group results, however, ANGLE does not have contractual commitments to meet
their obligations and therefore the risks are managed as two specific groups – ANGLE excluding Controlled investments and Controlled investments.
The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, trade receivables and trade payables which arise directly from its operations, and from time to
time treasury deposits, overdrafts and finance leases.
In addition the Group holds an investment portfolio comprising loans and equity investments (listed and/or unlisted) in technology based companies
and an earn-out classified as an “Other receivable” (Note 13).
It is the Group’s policy that no trading in financial derivatives shall be undertaken.
Financial assets
Financial assets of the Group comprise cash at bank and in hand as well as treasury deposits and loan notes. Other financial assets on which no
interest is earned comprise non-current investments and details are provided in Note 13. It is the Group’s policy to place surplus cash resources on
deposit at both floating and fixed term deposit rates of interest with the objective of maintaining a balance between accessibility of funds and
competitive rates of return. Fixed term deposits are for varying periods ranging from one to six months, to the extent that cash flow can be
reasonably predicted.
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17 Financial risk management continued
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities of the Group in the normal course of business comprise overdraft facilities and finance leases, and certain controlled investments
also enter into convertible loan agreements. It is the Group’s policy to use various financial instruments with floating and fixed rates of interest with
the objective of maintaining a balance between continuity of funding, matching the liability with the use of the asset, and finding flexible funding
options for a reasonable charge.
The Group currently does not utilise overdraft facilities. The Group believes that it has a good long-standing banking relationship and that facilities
can be arranged if required. Finance leases and hire purchase agreements are held under fixed rate contracts. The Group excluding controlled
investments has no long term borrowings or undrawn committed borrowing facilities. Controlled investments do have convertible loan agreements,
and one of them is at a fixed rate of interest. Therefore the Group is not exposed to any interest rate risk on its financial liabilities.
Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. The Group seeks to mitigate its credit risk on
cash and cash equivalents through banking with banks with the highest credit ratings. The risk for trade receivables is that a customer fails to pay for
goods or services received and the Group suffers a financial loss. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is represented by the
carrying amount of the assets described above.
The Group’s primary objective with respect to credit risk is to minimise the risk of default by customers. The majority of the Group’s revenue is derived
from contracts with the public sector and therefore the credit risk is considered to be relatively low. For private and overseas clients Group policy is
to assess the credit quality of each customer and where appropriate seek part-payment in advance.
Interest rate risk
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities have the following interest rate profile:
Fixed
rate(1)
£’000

Floating
rate(2)
£’000

Interest
free
£’000

2011
Total
£’000

Fixed
rate(1)
£’000

Floating
rate(2)
£’000

Interest
free
£’000

2010
Total
£’000

Financial assets:
Investments (non-current)
Other receivables (non-current)
Trade and other receivables (current)
Cash and cash equivalents

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
545

2,361
1,500
246
74

2,361
1,500
246
619

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
843

2,200
1,549
484
4

2,200
1,549
484
847

Total financial assets

–

545

4,181

4,726

–

843

4,237

5,080

10
90

–
–

149
132

159
222

21
98

–
–

649
–

670
98

100

–

281

381

119

–

649

768

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Total financial liabilities
(1)
(2)

Fixed rate payables attracted an interest rate of 7.24% (2010: 7.24%) and fixed rate liabilities attracted an interest rate of 8.0% during the year (2010: 8.0%).
Floating rate cash deposits in Sterling earn interest at rates between 0.06% and 0.1% (2010: 0.1%). The weighted average interest rate on Sterling cash deposit for this
period was between 0% and 0.04% (2010: 0.3%).

The Group does not consider the impact of interest rate risk to be material to its results or operations.
The primary interest rate risk impact relates to movements in underlying bank interest rates and the impact on interest received on cash and cash
equivalents held by the Group with corporate banks. If interest rates had been 1% higher on floating rate cash deposits then Finance income would
have been increased by £2,015 (2010: £1,630).
There is limited interest rate risk on financial liabilities as the Group has no significant loans and borrowings and the amount shown relates to
controlled investments with fixed rates.
With the exception of non-current investments, other receivables (non-current) and loans and borrowings, all amounts have maturity dates of less
than twelve months.
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17 Financial risk management continued
Foreign currency risk
The Group has overseas subsidiaries, the revenues and expenses of which are denominated in Sterling and US dollars. As a result, the Group’s
statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position may be affected by movements in the US dollar:Sterling exchange rate.
The majority of the Group’s operating revenues and expenses are in Sterling and US dollars. Sales are priced in Sterling or US dollars for preference
although the Group has a limited amount of revenues and expenses denominated in other currencies. A natural hedge exists through the matching
of anticipated foreign currency operating expenses with foreign currency revenues. Any excess exposure over and above this natural hedge will be
managed for all significant foreign currencies using forward currency contracts or currency swaps. In exceptional circumstances the Board may
approve of contracts in excess of twelve months.
Sensitivity analysis
The impact of a 5% variation in the US dollar rates on the profit/(loss) for the year is as follows:
2010
£

2011
£
Profit/(loss) – 5% strengthening
Profit/(loss) – 5% weakening

(16,902)
33,707

(23,767)
21,504

Hedging
Other than the natural hedge, the Group did not hedge its financial transactions in 2011 or 2010.
Currency profile
The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities have the following currency profile:

Sterling
£’000

US dollar
£’000

2011
Total
£’000

Sterling
£’000

US dollar
£’000

2010
Total
£’000

Financial assets:
Investments (non-current)
Other receivables (non-current)
Trade and other receivables (current)
Cash and cash equivalents

2,361
1,500
246
551

–
–
–
68

2,361
1,500
246
619

2,200
1,549
467
831

–
–
17
16

2,200
1,549
484
847

Total financial assets

4,658

68

4,726

5,047

33

5,080

Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

127
132

32
90

159
222

613
–

57
98

670
98

Total financial liabilities

259

122

381

613

155

768

Liquidity risk
The principal risk to which the Group is exposed is liquidity risk, that is the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The nature of the Group’s activities means it finances its operations through earnings from Management services, equity disposals, and the issue of
new shares to investors. The principal cash requirements are in relation to developing new ventures, funding investments and meeting working
capital requirements.
The Group seeks to manage liquidity through planning, forecasting, careful cash management and managing the investment risk. The Group has
limited cash balances to fund its operations and cash needs to be managed carefully.
Earnings from Management services have a degree of predictability due to their long term nature. However, contracts are for a finite length and
need to be replaced. Adverse market conditions may mean there are a reduced number of contracts, competition is fierce and margins are
squeezed.
Early stage companies typically experience significant negative cash flows, which ANGLE covers initially until sufficient progress is made to attract
further funding. Investments may be unable to obtain financing due to lack of operational progress or market conditions and may need to be
wound-up. The Group may feel it appropriate to provide additional investment and/or management time to support these companies further.
Adverse market conditions may also delay liquidity events, thereby requiring additional investment.
ANGLE may also find it difficult to raise additional capital. Sensitivity analysis examining a small percentage increase and decrease is of limited use
and accordingly no analysis has been shown.
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17 Financial risk management continued
Capital risk management
The Group defines the capital that it manages as the Group’s total equity. The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
• To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
• To have available the necessary financial resources to allow the Group to deliver benefits from its investments.
• To optimise the return to investors based on the level of risk undertaken.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets, pay dividends or return capital to shareholders.
The Group’s capital and equity ratio are shown in the table below:

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
Total assets
Equity ratio

2011
£

2010
£

4,582,248
5,254,428
87.2%

4,156,067
5,403,381
76.9%

Investment (price) risk
Equity investments are held to achieve capital growth in their value with the intention of subsequent disposal at a profit, although it may be
preferable to keep certain investments as a trading subsidiary where significant milestone payments and royalty income streams are possible. The
main risks arising from these equity investments are technological risk and market price risk. The Group seeks to manage and mitigate such risk by
using investment appraisal processes and monitoring procedures with regular reports made to the Board on the status of investments. For larger
investments ANGLE typically has a Board representative helping in an advisory capacity. The Group’s Progeny® model is built on robust risk
management processes combined with experienced management.
The Group’s investments are exposed to significant market risk. Valuations and disposals of unquoted and quoted investments depend on a
combination of market factors, including investor sentiment, availability of liquidity and funding and appetite for specific asset classes, as well as the
specific performance of each underlying investment.
The Group considers the impact of investment risk to be material to its Financial Statements as the results are highly sensitive to any increase or
decrease in the price of investments and to their accounting treatment. An investment’s fair value may change significantly on the achievement of
milestones, funding events or strong or poor performance, particularly with regard to sales. Controlled investments may become non-controlled
investments with the investment recognised at fair value for the first time. The small portfolio of investments exacerbates the sensitivity to any
changes. Traditional sensitivity analysis examining a small percentage increase and decrease is of limited use given the small portfolio and
accordingly no analysis has been shown.
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Other than as disclosed, the Directors believe that the fair value and the book value of financial assets and financial liabilities is not materially
different. Trade payables and receivables have a remaining life of less than one year so their value on the statement of financial position is
considered to be a fair approximation of fair value. The valuation policy for investments and other receivables (non-current) is detailed in Note 1.7.
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying values shown in the statement of financial position, are as
follows:
Fair value
through profit
or loss
£
30 April 2010
Non-controlled investments (non-current)
Other receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Convertible and other loans
30 April 2011
Non-controlled investments (non-current)
Other receivables
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Convertible and other loans

2,200,311
1,500,000

Amortised
cost
£

Total
carrying
value
£

Fair
value
£

48,942
483,818
846,784
(670,251)
(98,001)

2,200,311
1,548,942
483,818
846,784
(670,251)
(98,001)

2,200,311
1,548,942
483,818
846,784
(670,251)
(98,001)

245,697
619,118
(159,547)
(221,625)

2,360,811
1,500,000
245,697
619,118
(159,547)
(221,625)

2,360,811
1,500,000
245,697
619,118
(159,547)
(221,625)

2,360,811
1,500,000
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17 Financial risk management continued
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities
The Group classifies financial assets using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making fair value assessments. The level
in the fair value hierarchy within which a financial asset is classified is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to that
asset’s fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy includes the following three levels:
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

Valued using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
Valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs (other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities), such as price of recent investment
Valued by reference to valuation techniques that are not based on observable market data (See Note 1.7 for valuation methodology)
Level 1
£

Level 2
£

Level 3
£

Total
£

Financial assets recognised at fair value
At 30 April 2010
Non-controlled investments (non-current)
Other receivables

–
–

–
–

2,200,311
1,500,000

2,200,311
1,500,000

Total

–

–

3,700,311

3,700,311

At 30 April 2011
Non-controlled investments (non-current)
Other receivables

–
–

2,360,811
–

–
1,500,000

2,360,811
1,500,000

Total

–

2,360,811

1,500,000

3,860,811

2011
£

2010
£

1,500,000
–

1,500,000
48,942

1,500,000

1,548,942

As a result of a third party investment there was a transfer from level 3 to level 2.
18

Other receivables

Non-current assets:
Other receivables
Acolyte Biomedica purchaser
Non-controlled investments

Other receivables relates to the fair value ascribed to the deferred consideration from the sale of Acolyte Biomedica (Note 13).
19

Trade and other receivables

Current assets:
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

2011
£

2010
£

245,321
376
77,252

321,945
161,873
166,490

322,949

650,308

The standard credit period allowed for trade receivables is 30 days, although this may be extended such that invoices become payable after
completion of a key milestone.
Age profile of trade receivables
2011
£

2010
£

Not past due
0 – 30 days past due
30 – 90 days past due
Greater than 90 days past due

245,321
–
–
–

241,097
80,848
–
–

Total

245,321

321,945

The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other receivables to approximate their fair value. All receivables are unsecured and interest
free, unless past their due date where interest may be charged.
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20

Controlled investments – loans

Non-current liabilities:
Unsecured convertible loan (interest bearing)
Unsecured convertible loans (interest free)
Unsecured loans (interest free)

2011
£

2010
£

89,874
22,067
109,684

98,001
–
–

221,625

98,001

The interest bearing unsecured convertible loan note has a maturity date based on either a change of control or a finance round above a certain
threshold or a long stop date. On the occurrence of such an event the loan note is convertible into equity or repayable at the option of the holder.
In certain circumstances (default events) it becomes repayable.
The interest free unsecured convertible loan note has a maturity date based on either a change of control or a finance round above a certain
threshold or a long stop date. On the occurrence of such an event the loan note is convertible into equity or repayable at the option of a lender
majority. In certain circumstances (default events) it becomes repayable.
The interest free unsecured loan note has a maturity date based on either a change of control or a finance round above a certain threshold or a
long stop date. On the occurrence of such an event the loan is repayable at the option of the holder. In certain circumstances (default events) it
becomes repayable. There is no obligation to repay the loan unless and until all monies owed under associated convertible loans have been repaid
in full or otherwise discharged or released.
21

Trade and other payables

Current liabilities:
Trade payables
Other taxes and social security costs
Other payables
Accruals and deferred income

2011
£

2010
£

77,172
73,613
8,762
339,547

565,087
59,045
46,119
479,062

499,094

1,149,313

As a result of ANGLE’s establishment and operation of Progeny© companies, complex VAT issues arise requiring agreement of a special partial
exemption method. Included within accruals and deferred income is a provision for an estimated liability for VAT and further professional advice
relating thereto. Positive progress has been made in clarifying treatment and agreeing a special partial exemption method, which has removed
some of the differences in interpretation and the Group anticipates reaching agreement with HMRC in the near future. This has reduced the
uncertainty in relation to the quantum and timing of the actual liability.
Other accruals includes amounts for professional fees, accrued vacation and restructuring costs. Deferred income includes amounts for pre-billed
revenues and grants.
22 Share capital
The share capital of the Company is shown below:

Allotted, called up and fully paid
30,437,279 (2010: 27,132,931) Ordinary shares of 10p each

2011
£

2010
£

3,043,728

2,713,293

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.
On 13 October 2010 the Company issued 3,304,348 new Ordinary shares with a nominal value of £0.10 at an issue price of £0.23 per share with
regard to a placing of shares realising net proceeds of £754,865. There were no changes to the share capital in the prior year.
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23 Share based payments
The key disclosures that enable the user of the Financial Statements to understand the nature and extent of share based payment charges through
the statement of comprehensive income relate to ANGLE plc and not to the controlled investments.
Company – Share Option Schemes
The Company operates Share Option Schemes as a means of encouraging ownership and aligning interests of staff and external shareholders.
These are a key part of the remuneration package and granted at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee taking into account the need to
motivate, retain and recruit high calibre executives. In 2007 the Company introduced a remuneration scheme involving deferred shares and option
use was significantly reduced. This deferred share scheme is now being wound down with replacement incentives including the use of options.
Approved and Unapproved options are not exercisable until three years after the date of grant and cease to be exercisable after seven years from
the date of grant. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group unless the conditions under which they leave are such that they are
considered to be a “good leaver”; in this case their options remain exercisable for a limited period of time. Share option agreements in place require
the employee to reimburse the Company for the cost of employer’s National Insurance Contributions, and other equivalent taxes, and accordingly
the Company does not accrue for such taxes that would otherwise be due on share option gains.
The movement in the number of employee share options is set out below:
2011
Number
of share
options
#

2011
Weighted
average
exercise
price (p)

2010
Number
of share
options
#

2010
Weighted
average
exercise
price (p)

Outstanding at 1 May
During the year
Granted
Exercised
Lapsed
Forfeited

–
–
(1,032,957)
(85,397)

–
–
114.22
128.34

Outstanding at 30 April

1,277,247

85.09

2,395,601

99.5

Capable of being exercised at 30 April

1,277,247

85.09

2,395,601

99.5

2,395,601

99.5

3,200,856

100.4

–
–
(804,461)
(794)

–
–
103.1
126.0

Options are issued at market price, with the exception of those issued on 30 March 2006 (see table below) which were issued at the placing price. The
options outstanding at 30 April 2011 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of two years and nil months (2010: two years and nil months).
The Company uses the “Black-Scholes” model to determine the fair-value of the Company’s share options. The Group has elected to apply the
share-based payment exemption under IFRS 1. The Company has not applied IFRS 2 to those options granted before 7 November 2002.
Assumptions
The following assumptions are used in the model to determine the fair value of share options at the respective date of grant that are still outstanding
at 30 April 2011:

Date of grant
29 July 2005
30 March 2006
27 April 2006
21 March 2007

Exercise
price (£)
1.260
0.790
0.835
0.640

Share price
at date
of grant (£)
1.260
0.840
0.835
0.640

Expected
volatility

Risk free
interest rate

29.24%
30.00%
30.00%
35.00%

4.24%
4.39%
4.63%
5.01%

Life of
option
(years)
6
5
5
5

Expected
dividends

Outstanding
shares
options

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

226,191
601,056
200,000
250,000
1,277,247

Expected volatility is derived from observation of the volatility of quoted shares in similar sectors to the Company.
The expected life used in the model is based on management’s best estimate taking into account the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural conditions.
At 30 April 2010, 312,500 options with an exercise price of £1.44 (representing 5% of the value of the Placing Shares at the Placing Price) over ordinary
shares of 10p each in the Company were outstanding to KBC Peel Hunt. The options were issued as part consideration for its services in connection
with the flotation and placing in March 2004, vested immediately and ceased to be exercisable on 10 March 2011. At 30 April 2011 there were no
options outstanding to KBC Peel Hunt following the expiry of their exercise date in the year.
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Company – Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme
The Deferred Annual Bonus (DAB) scheme is being wound down and now relates only to past employees of the Group. Bonuses under the DAB
scheme were paid partly in cash and partly in deferred shares. The cash element was accrued in the year it related to and included in wages and
salaries. The deferred shares, comprising Mandatory and Matching shares, are deferred for three years at which point they vest. Awards are forfeited
if the employee leaves the Group before the awards vest, unless the conditions under which they leave are such that they are considered to be a
“good leaver”; in which case their award vests, but may be pro-rated.
The movement in the number of DAB scheme shares is set out below:
2011
Number
of DAB
shares
#

2011
Weighted
average
award
price (p)

Interests under DAB Scheme at 1 May
During the year
Exercised
Forfeited

424,548

25.1

(187,005)
(13,140)

28.0
28.0

Interests under DAB Scheme at 30 April

224,403

22.5

Capable of being exercised at 30 April

–

2010
Number
of DAB
shares
#
428,396
–
(3,848)
424,548

2010
Weighted
average
award
price (p)
25.1
–
28.0
25.1

–

Awards were made at market price. The awards exercised in the year had a weighted average exercise price of 18.25p. The awards outstanding at
30 April 2011 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of three months (2010: ten months).
The share based payment charge for the Company Share Option Schemes and DAB scheme was £21,463 (2010: £58,870).
Controlled investments
Controlled investments individually operate Unapproved, or equivalent, share option schemes and restricted share schemes as a means of
attracting start-up management, encouraging ownership and aligning interests of staff with shareholders. Share options are a key part of the
remuneration package and are granted at the discretion of the individual controlled entity boards taking into account the need to recruit, motivate
and retain high calibre executives.
Controlled investments unapproved share option schemes typically have a management option pool of 15% of the issued share capital. Options are
typically 1) granted at market value 2) have vesting and/or performance conditions and 3) lapse after a period of 10 years from the date of grant.
There are no legal or constructive obligations to repurchase or settle options in cash.
Market prices do not exist for such early stage controlled investments and, in the absence of market prices, fair value is estimated using a valuation
technique to value the instrument on the measurement date in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties.
The share based payment charge for controlled investments was £3,745 (2010: £1,698).
24

ESOT shares
2011
£

2010
£

Opening cost
Disposals

342,115
(34,128)

342,115
–

Closing cost

307,987

342,115

Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) shares are ANGLE plc shares held by the ANGLE Employee Trust. At 30 April 2011 the Trust held 113,259 shares
(2010: 300,264 shares). The market value of these shares at 30 April 2011 was £28,032 (2010: £99,838).
25 Contingent liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2011 (2010: £nil).
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26 Guarantees and other financial commitments
The Group has operating lease commitments for office accommodation on leases of generally less than one year with monthly rental payments and
short notice periods.
2011
£

2010
£

19,197
–

39,508
–

19,197

39,508

Minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases on property expiring:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

The Group also has a number of retainers with professional advisors which can be terminated on short notice periods.
In 2010 the Group entered into an agreement with Geomerics Limited to put £62,500 into an Escrow Account to facilitate the provision of a personal
guarantee for an Enterprise Finance Guarantee Loan to Geomerics Limited. Other than this, the Group has no contractual commitments to provide
financial support to its investments.
27 Related party transactions
The Group provided executive management and support services to, and incurred expenditure on behalf of, portfolio companies as follows:

Geomerics Limited

2011
£

2010
£

60,683

270,466

2011
£

2010
£

67,899

201,110

At the reporting date amounts were due from investments as follows:

Geomerics Limited

Directors’ interests – related party interests and transactions
Apart from the interests disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 17 to 18 and below, none of the Directors had any interest at any time
during the year ended 30 April 2011 in the share capital of the Company or its subsidiaries.
Ian Griffiths holds an interest in NeuroTargets as a result of purchasing 938 shares for £15,008 in January 2003 representing 0.5% of the issued share
capital at 30 April 2011 (2010: 938 shares representing 1.1%). Ian Griffiths also participated in a convertible loan agreement in June 2007 for £1,218
(2010: £1,218).
At the reporting date, £nil (2010: £35,268 of salary and pension) was due to Andrew Newland and £nil (2010: £19,030) of salary was due to Ian
Griffiths.
No Director had a material interest in a contract, other than a service contract, with the Company or its subsidiaries, or investments during the year.
28 Post reporting date events
As explained in the Chairman’s and Chief Executive’s Statements, the key post reporting date events are as follows:
1) The Company has successfully completed a fund raising of approximately £1.2 million net of costs. The proceeds will be used to strengthen the
Company’s balance sheet, help meet corporate overheads during the next 12 months and allow the Company to progress its medical
diagnostic company Parsortix.
2) The Group’s 33% owned portfolio company Geomerics, has joined Epic Games’ prestigious Unreal Engine 3 Integrated Partners Programme.
3) The Group’s 80% subsidiary, Parsortix has announced that initial experiments have been successful in capturing cultured breast cancer cells
that had been added to healthy blood. This offers the potential of a major new business opportunity for the Company.
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Company Balance Sheet
As at 30 April 2011

Company number 4985171

Fixed assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Current assets
Debtors – due after one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Notes

2011
£

2010
£

C2

2,605,087

2,583,624

C3

5,229,668
369,971

7,716,377
–

8,204,726

10,300,001

3,043,728
14,126,365
461,931
(9,427,298)

2,713,293
13,701,935
999,110
(7,114,337)

8,204,726

10,300,001

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Share based payment reserve
Profit and loss reserve

C4
C4
C4
C4

Shareholders’ funds – equity interests

The Financial Statements on pages 52 to 54 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 27 July 2011 and signed on its behalf by:

I F Griffiths
Director

A D W Newland
Director
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 April 2011
C1 Accounting policies
C1.1 Accounting convention and compliance with accounting standards
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable
United Kingdom accounting standards. A summary of the more important accounting policies which have been applied consistently throughout
the year are set out below.
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the holding Company’s Profit and Loss Account has not been included in these Financial
Statements. The loss for the financial year was £2,871,603 (2010: £2,638,551) which resulted from a provision made against the carrying value of loans
due from Group undertakings (see Note C3).
As permitted by FRS 1 Cash Flow Statements, no Cash Flow Statement for the Company has been included on the grounds that the Group includes
the Company in its own published Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 25 – Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, not to prepare a financial
instruments note as the information is available in the published Financial Statements of the Group.
C1.2 Fixed Asset Investments
Fixed asset investments are held at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value and are held for long term investment purposes.
C1.3 Loans to subsidiary undertakings
Intercompany loans are provided to operating subsidiaries and are held at cost less any provision to reduce carrying value to its currently estimated
recoverable amount.
C1.4 Share based payments
The Share option and Deferred Annual Bonus schemes allow Group employees to acquire shares of the Company, subject to certain criteria. In
accordance with FRS 20 Share-based payments, the fair value of options granted and deferred shares awarded is recognised as an expense of
employment and the cost is borne by the appropriate subsidiary receiving the benefit of the employees’ services. The fair value is treated as a
capital contribution and added to the cost of the Company’s investments in its subsidiary undertakings and a corresponding credit is made to
reserves. The accounting treatment required by FRS 20 is consistent with that applied under IFRS 2 in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
C2 Investments
2011
£

2010
£

Shares in subsidiaries
At 1 May
Additions

2,583,624
21,463

2,524,754
58,870

At 30 April

2,605,087

2,583,624

Additions represent share based payment transactions.
Details of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings at 30 April 2011 are shown in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements along with other
interests held indirectly through subsidiary undertakings.
C3 Debtors falling due after more than one year
2010
£

2011
£
Amounts owed by Group undertakings
At 1 May
Additions
Less provision
At 30 April

7,716,377
384,894
(2,871,603)

10,354,928
–
(2,638,551)

5,229,668

7,716,377

ANGLE plc provides a centralised treasury function to trading subsidiaries. The amounts due from Group undertakings are interest free, unsecured
and have no fixed date of repayment.
The Company’s credit risk is that one of its subsidiaries is unable to repay intercompany amounts owing. The recoverability of the Company’s
intercompany receivable is considered at each balance sheet date.
The provision reflects the Directors’ view of the potential impact of current adverse economic conditions on the long term value of the amounts
owed by subsidiary undertakings.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued
C4 Share capital and reserves

Share
capital
£

Share
premium
£

Share based
payment
reserve
£

At 1 May 2009
Retained loss for the year
Share based payments
Release on forfeiture/lapse

2,713,293

13,701,935

1,311,986

At 30 April 2010
Retained loss for the year
Net proceeds from issue of share capital
Share based payments
Utilised on share schemes
Release on forfeiture/lapse

2,713,293

13,701,935

330,435

424,430

At 30 April 2011

3,043,728

Profit
and loss
reserve
£
(4,847,532)
(2,638,551)

58,870
(371,746)
999,110

371,746
(7,114,337)
(2,871,603)

21,463
(47,126)
(511,516)
14,126,365

461,931

47,126
511,516
(9,427,298)

Details of the Company’s authorised share capital and changes in its issued share capital and share premium account can be found in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on page 24 and Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 48.
Details of the Company’s share options, DAB scheme shares and warrants can be found in Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on
pages 49 to 50.
On 30 April 2011 the following employee options over ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company were outstanding:

Year of grant (each year ended 30 April)

Exercise period

2004
2004
2006
2006
2007

18/07/2006 – 14/01/2011
17/03/2007 – 16/03/2011
29/07/2008 – 28/07/2012
30/03/2009 – 26/04/2013
21/03/2010 – 20/03/2014

Option
price

2011
Number of
options

2010
Number of
options

£1.00
£1.44
£1.26
£0.79-£0.835
£0.64

–
–
226,191
801,056
250,000

541,687
430,000
292,858
801,056
330,000

1,277,247

2,395,601

At 30 April 2010, 312,500 options with an exercise price of £1.44 (representing 5% of the value of the Placing Shares at the Placing Price) over ordinary
shares of 10p each in the Company were outstanding to KBC Peel Hunt. The options were issued as part consideration for its services in connection
with the flotation and placing in March 2004, vested immediately and ceased to be exercisable on 10 March 2011. At 30 April 2011 there were no
options outstanding to KBC Peel Hunt following the expiry of their exercise date in the year.
C5 Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses, including auditor’s remuneration, are borne by other Group companies.
C6 Directors’ emoluments and employee information
The only employees of the Company are the Directors; the remuneration of the Directors is borne by Group subsidiary undertakings. Full details of
their remuneration can be found in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 17 to 18.
C7 Related party transactions
The Company has relied on the exemptions given in FRS 8 not to disclose transactions between itself and its subsidiaries that have been eliminated
on consolidation.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
ANGLE plc
Directors:
G R Selvey (Chairman)
A D W Newland (Chief Executive)
I F Griffiths (Finance Director)
D W Quysner CBE (Non-Executive Director)

Registered Office
3 Frederick Sanger Road
The Surrey Research Park
Guildford GU2 7YD

Dear Shareholder
Annual General Meeting
You will find included with this document a Notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company for 2:00 pm on Thursday 6 October 2011
at which the following resolutions will be proposed:
1. Resolution 1 to receive and adopt the annual report and accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 30 April 2011;
2. Resolution 2 to re-appoint the auditors of the Company, Baker Tilly, and authorise the Directors to determine their level of remuneration;
3. Resolution 3 to grant the Directors authority to allot unissued shares in the capital of the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £1,329,634;
Note: the Directors wish to renew their authorisations with respect to the allotment of new shares.
4. Resolution 4 to disapply statutory pre-emption rights;
Note: the Directors wish to renew their authorisations for the disapplication of the statutory pre-emption rights in respect of the allotment of
new shares pursuant to rights issues or otherwise for cash, as detailed in the Notice of Annual General Meeting, to enable the Directors to take
advantage of opportunities as they arise without the need for further shareholder approval.
5. Resolution 5 to grant the Directors authority to purchase issued shares in the capital of the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £354,573;
Note: whilst the Directors have no present intention of purchasing the Company’s shares, the Directors are seeking authorisation as they wish to
have the flexibility to do so if this was generally in the best interests of the shareholders and (except in the case of purchases intended to satisfy
obligations under share schemes) the expected effect of the purchase would be to increase earnings per share of the remaining shares.
The authorities requested in items 3, 4 and 5 will expire at the 2012 Annual General Meeting or, if earlier, 15 months following the date the resolutions
are passed.
Action to be taken
A Form of Proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed. If you are a holder of shares in the Company you are advised to complete
and return the form in accordance with the instructions printed on it so as to arrive at the Company’s registrars, Capita Registrars (Proxies),
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU as soon as possible, but in any event no later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.
The return of the Form of Proxy does not preclude you from attending and voting at the Annual General Meeting if you so wish. Shares held
in uncertificated form (i.e. in CREST) may be voted through the CREST Proxy Voting Service in accordance with the procedures set out in the
CREST manual.
Recommendation
Your Directors consider the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to be in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors unanimously recommend shareholders to vote in favour of all the resolutions to be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.
Yours faithfully
Garth Selvey
Chairman
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
Continued
(Company number 4985171)
Notice is hereby given that the eighth Annual General Meeting of ANGLE plc (“the Company”) will be held at 2:00 pm on Thursday 6 October 2011
at 3 Frederick Sanger Road, the Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7YD for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following
resolutions of which the resolutions numbered 1 through 3 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolutions numbered 4 and 5 will be
proposed as special resolutions:
Ordinary Business
1. TO receive the accounts of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2011, and the reports of the Directors and auditors thereon.
2. TO re-appoint Baker Tilly as auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next general
meeting of the Company at which accounts are laid and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.
Special Business
3. THAT, for the purposes of section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”), the Directors be and they are hereby generally and unconditionally
authorised to exercise all powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into,
shares in the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,329,634 PROVIDED that this authority shall expire (unless previously renewed,
varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) at the earlier of the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or
the date falling 15 months from the date of the passing of this resolution EXCEPT that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or
agreement which would or might require shares to be allotted or the granting of rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the
Company after such expiry and the Directors may allot shares and grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any security into, shares in the
Company in pursuance of any such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired. This authority shall replace any
existing like authority which is hereby revoked with immediate effect.
4. THAT, subject to and conditional upon the passing of resolution 3, the Directors be and they are hereby generally empowered, in substitution for
all existing authorities, pursuant to section 570 of the Act to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant
to the authority conferred by resolution 3 above as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be
limited to:
(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer of equity securities open for acceptance for a period fixed by the Directors to
holders of equity securities on the register of members of the Company on a date fixed by the Directors in proportion (as nearly as may be)
to their respective holdings of such securities or in accordance with the rights attached thereto but SUBJECT to such exclusions, variations or
other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

fractional entitlements;
directions from any holders of shares to deal in some other manner with their respective entitlements;
legal or practical problems arising in any overseas territory;
the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange; or
otherwise howsoever;

(b) the allotment of equity securities (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,063,718;
and the power hereby conferred shall expire (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) 15 months after
the date of passing of this resolution or at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company (whichever first occurs) EXCEPT
that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such
expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.
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5. THAT, the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 701 of the Act to make market
purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company provided that:
(a) the maximum number of ordinary shares that may be purchased is 3,545,728 (representing 10% of the Company’s issued share capital);
(b) the minimum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for each ordinary share is 10p;
(c) the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for each ordinary share is an amount equal to 105% of the average of the
middle market quotations of an ordinary share of the Company taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business
days immediately preceding the day on which the ordinary share is contracted to be purchased;
and the power hereby conferred shall expire (unless previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) 15 months after
the date of passing of this resolution or at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company (whichever first occurs) EXCEPT
that the Company may, before such expiry, enter into one or more contracts to purchase ordinary shares under which such purchases may be
completed or executed wholly or partly after the expiry of this authority and may make a purchase of ordinary shares in pursuance of any such
contract or contracts.
Registered Office
3 Frederick Sanger Road
The Surrey Research Park
Guildford GU2 7YD

By Order Of The Board
Ian F Griffiths
Company Secretary

Dated 8 September 2011
Notes:
1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and
vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The form of proxy for use by members is enclosed. To appoint more than
one proxy, the Proxy Form should be photocopied and completed for each proxy holder. The proxy holder’s name should be written on the Proxy
Form together with the number of shares in relation to which the proxy is authorised to act. The box on the Proxy Form must also be ticked to
indicate that the proxy instruction is one of multiple instructions being given.
2. To be valid, an appointment of proxy must be returned to the Company’s Registrars at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting or any
adjourned meeting by one of the following methods:
•
the form of proxy in hard copy duly executed, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed
(or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority) must be deposited at the Company’s registrars, Capita Registrars, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU; or
•
in the case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures set out in
Note 4 of this document.
Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting in person.
3. Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company has specified that, to be entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting (and for the purpose of determining the number of votes they may cast), members must be entered on the Company’s register of
members at 6.00pm on 5 October 2011. Changes to entries on the relevant register of securities after that time shall be disregarded in
determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.
4. To appoint a proxy or to give or amend an instruction to a previously appointed proxy via the CREST system, the CREST message must be received
by the issuer’s agent RA10 by at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting or any adjourned meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will
be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent
is able to retrieve the message. After this time any change of instructions to a proxy appointed through CREST should be communicated to the
proxy by other means. EUI does not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages, therefore normal system timings
and limitations will apply in relation to the input of CREST proxy instructions. CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and
those CREST Members who have appointed voting service provider(s) should contact their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) for
assistance with appointing proxies via CREST. For further information on CREST procedures, limitations and system timings please refer to the CREST
Manual. We may treat as invalid a proxy appointment sent by CREST in the circumstances set out in Regulations 35(5) (a) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001. In any case your proxy form must be received by the Company’s registrars no later than at least 48 hours before the
time of the meeting or any adjourned meeting.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
Continued
Explanatory Notes:
Resolution 1: Report and Accounts
The Directors are required to present to the meeting the audited accounts and the reports of the Directors and the auditors for the financial year
ended 30 April 2011.
Resolution 2: Re-appointment of Auditors
The Company is required to appoint auditors at each general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company, to hold office until the end
of the next such meeting. This resolution proposes the appointment and, in accordance with standard practice, gives authority to the Directors to
determine the remuneration to be paid to the auditors.
Resolution 3: Directors’ authority to allot Shares
Section 551 of the Act provides that the directors of a company may not allot shares (or grant rights to subscribe for shares or to convert any security
into shares) in a company unless they have been given prior authorisation for the proposed allotment by ordinary resolution of the company’s
shareholders or by the Articles of Association of a company.
Accordingly, this resolution seeks to grant a new authority under section 551 of the Act to authorise the Directors to allot shares in the Company
or grant rights to subscribe for, or convert any securities into, shares of the Company and will expire 15 months after the date of the passing of this
resolution or at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company following the passing of this resolution, whichever occurs first.
If passed, resolution 3 would give the Directors authority to allot shares or grant rights to subscribe for, or covert any security into, shares in the
Company up to an aggregate nominal value of £1,329,634 representing approximately 37% of the Company’s existing issued share capital at
the date of this document.
Resolution 4: Dis-application of pre-emption rights
Under section 561(1) of the Act, if the Directors wish to allot any of the unissued shares or grant rights over shares for cash (other than pursuant to an
employee share scheme) they must in the first instance offer them to existing shareholders in proportion to their holdings. There may be occasions,
however, when the Directors will need the flexibility to finance business opportunities by the issue of shares without a pre-emptive offer to existing
shareholders. This cannot be done under the Act unless the shareholders have first waived their pre-emption rights.
Resolution 4 empowers the Directors to allot equity securities for cash other than in accordance with the statutory pre-emption rights up to a
maximum nominal amount of £1,063,718, representing approximately 30 per cent. of the nominal value of the issued ordinary share capital of the
Company as at the date of this notice.
Resolution 5: Authority for market purchase
Resolution 5 will permit the Company to purchase up to 3,545,728 ordinary shares of 10 pence each (approximately 10 per cent. of the ordinary
shares in issue as at the date of this document) through the market subject to the pricing limits set out in the resolution and shall expire (unless
previously renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) 15 months after the date of passing of this resolution or at the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (whichever first occurs).
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General Information for shareholders in respect of the
Annual General Meeting
Time of the meeting
The doors will open at 1:50 pm and the AGM will start promptly at 2:00 pm on Thursday 6 October 2011.
The venue
The meeting will be held at 3 Frederick Sanger Road, The Surrey Research Park, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 7YD.
Directions
Directions to the venue can be found at www.surrey-research-park.com/directions.html or from any website mapping service such as
www.multimap.com or www.streetmap.co.uk
Shareholders’ enquiries
Shareholders’ enquiries will be dealt with by a member of staff.
Questions at the meeting
The Chairman will take questions from shareholders during the meeting relating to the various items of business and resolutions contained in the
formal notice of meeting included herewith. If you wish to ask a question, please make your way to the question registration area, where there will
be somebody to assist you.
Travel details
There is easy access from the A3. Follow the signs to the Royal Surrey Hospital and The Surrey Research Park.
The nearest railway station is Guildford and the venue is located approximately five minutes taxi ride away from the railway station. Alternatively,
there is a 10 minute bus ride. The bus stop at The Surrey Research Park is approximately 2 minutes walking distance away from the venue.
Refreshments
Coffee, tea and biscuits will be available before the meeting.
Toilet facilities
These will be available at the venue.
Mobile phones
Please ensure mobile phones are switched off for the duration of the meeting.
Smoking
Smoking will not be permitted anywhere in the venue or during the meeting.
Disabled Persons
Arrangements have been made for disabled shareholders. Please follow the signs to the separate areas for disabled car parking. If you have a
companion to assist you, they will be admitted to the meeting. Guide dogs are also permitted. There are lift facilities available.
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Company Information
Directors

Garth R Selvey, ChairmanANR
Andrew D W Newland, Chief Executive
Ian F Griffiths, Finance Director
David W Quysner CBE, Non-executive DirectorANR
- Audit Committee
- Nomination Committee
R - Remuneration Committee
A

N

Secretary

Ian F Griffiths

Company number

4985171

Registered office &
Business address

3 Frederick Sanger Road
The Surrey Research Park
Guildford
Surrey GU2 7YD
+44 (0)1483 685830
www.ANGLEplc.com

Auditors

Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP
The Clock House
140 London Road
Guildford
Surrey GU1 1UW

Nominated Advisor
and Broker

Collins Stewart Limited
88 Wood Street
London EC2V 7QR

Registrars

CRG Capita
34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham
Kent BR3 4TU

Bankers

National Westminster Bank
PO Box 1
2nd Floor, G3
2 Cathedral Hill
Guildford
Surrey GU1 3ZR

Solicitors

Pinsent Masons LLP
30 Crown Place
Earl Street
London EC2A 4ES

Form of proxy
Relating to the Annual General Meeting (“the Meeting”) of ANGLE plc (“the Company”) to be held at 2:00pm on Thursday 6 October 2011
at 3 Frederick Sanger Road, The Surrey Research Park, Guildford GU2 7YD.
I/We (insert name)
of (address)
being (a) holder(s) of (number)

ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting or

(see note 6)
as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 2:00pm on Thursday
6 October 2011 and at any adjournment thereof.
My/Our proxy is to vote on the resolutions as follows:
For

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

Against

Withheld

1. To receive the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2011
and to receive the directors’ report and the auditor’s report thereon.
2. To re-appoint Baker Tilly as auditors of the Company and to authorise the directors
to fix the remuneration of the auditors.
3. To authorise the directors to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot securities
up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,329,634.
SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
4. To disapply statutory pre-emption rights.
5. To authorise the Company to purchase its own shares.
In the absence of instructions, the proxy is authorised to vote (or abstain from voting) at his or her discretion on the specified resolutions. The proxy is
also authorised to vote (or abstain from voting) on any other business which may properly come before the meeting.
Date

Signature

Please mark this box if you are appointing more than one proxy

✂

NOTES
1. Please indicate how you wish your proxy to vote on the resolution by inserting "X" in the appropriate space.
2. The "Withheld" option is to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution. Such a vote is not a vote in law and will not be counted in the votes
'for' or 'against' a resolution.
3. In the case of a corporation, the proxy must be under its common seal (if any) or the hand of its duly authorised agent or officer. In the case of
an individual, the proxy must be signed by the appointor or his agent, duly authorised in writing.
4. This proxy, together with any authority (or a notarially certified copy of such authority) under which it is signed, should reach the Company's
registrars, Capita Registrars, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU no less than 48 hours before the time for the holding of the Meeting
or adjourned Meeting.
5. You may appoint one or more proxies of your choice to attend, vote and speak at the meeting and any adjournment thereof, provided each
proxy is appointed to exercise rights in respect of different shares. To appoint more than one proxy (an) additional proxy form(s) may be obtained
by contacting the registrars or you may photocopy this page indicating on each copy the number of shares in respect of which the proxy is
appointed. All forms must be signed and should be returned to Capita Registrars in the same envelope.
6. If you wish to appoint a proxy other than the Chairman of the meeting, delete the words "the Chairman of the meeting or" and insert the name
and address of your proxy in the space provided. Please initial the amendment. If you wish your proxy to make comments on your behalf you will
need to appoint someone other than the Chairman and give them relevant instructions directly. A proxy, who need not be a member of the
Company, must attend the meeting in person to represent you.
7. In the case of joint holders, the signature of only one of the joint holders is required but, if more than one joint holder votes at the meeting, the
vote of the first named on the register of members will be accepted to the exclusion of the other joint holders.
8. Shares held in uncertificated form (i.e. in CREST) may be voted through the CREST Proxy Voting Service in accordance with the procedures set out
in the CREST manual.

Please complete this form of Proxy and return in the
enclosed reply paid envelope to:
PXS
34 BECKENHAM ROAD
BECKENHAM
BR3 4TU
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